
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Crime & Disorder 
(Overview & Scrutiny) 

Committee 
 

Councillor R J Wells (Chairman) 
Councillor A Sandhu MBE(Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillor M J Bryant  

Councillor Mrs S P Butterfill 
Councillor S J Doran 
Councillor D J Mote 

Councillor Mrs J A Rickwood 
Councillor M J Street 

 
 
 
 

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on 

 
Wednesday 11 February 2015 

 
at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 

 

 
Managing Director 
3 February 2015 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 



 

 
CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 

Wednesday 11 February 2015 
 
 

1. Apologies For Absence   

 

 To receive any apologies of absence.  
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 

 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board or 
Managing Director.  
 

 

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 July 2014  (Pages 1 - 
16) 

 

4. Urgent Items [IF ANY]   

 

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are any 
urgent items and their position on the agenda.  
 

 

5. To consider references from other Committees (IF ANY)   

 

 There are no references from other Committees to consider.  
 

 

6. Regulation 9 Notice  (Pages 17 
- 18) 

 

 To note the contents of the Regulation 9 Notice for the period 27 
January 2015 to 31 May 2015.   
 

 

7. Joint Vision for Policing in Kent   

 

 To receive a joint address by Mrs Ann Barnes, Kent Police and Crime 
Commissioner (PCC) and Mr Paul Brandon, Deputy Chief Constable 
(DCC) Kent Police.   
 

 

8. Kent Police and Crime Panel (PCP) Update  (Pages 19 
- 32) 

 

 To note the attached Minutes of the Kent and Medway Police and  



 

Crime Panel (PCP) meetings held on 24 July and 9 September 2014 
and to be updated by Dartford’s PCP representative on the Panel’s 
subsequent meetings held on 4 November 2014 and 3 February 
2015.   
 

9. CSP Strategic Assessment 2014  (Pages 33 
- 86) 

 

 To consider the Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety 
Partnership (CSP) Strategic Assessment 2014.  
 

 

10. Work Plan Update  (Pages 87 
- 88) 

 

 To note the contents of the Work Plan Update (attached) and to 
suggest topics for inclusion in the Committee’s rolling Work 
Programme for the 2015-16 municipal year and beyond.   
 

 

11. Dates for future meetings   

 

 Members are invited to note the dates for future meetings of the 
Committee, subject to approval of the General Assembly of the 
Council at its Annual Meeting on 27 May 2015: 
 

(i) Wednesday 22 July 2015; 
 

(ii) Wednesday 10 February 2016  
 

 

 



 

1 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) 
Committee held on Wednesday 23 July 2014. 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor R J Wells (Chairman) 
Councillor M J Bryant 
Councillor E J Lampkin (Substitute) 
Councillor G T Prout (Substitute) 
Councillor M J Street 
 

 
ABSENT: 
 

Councillor A S Sandhu, MBE 
Councillor S J Doran 
Councillor D J Mote 
Councillor Mrs J A Rickwood 
 

 
 Dartford Borough Council Officers:- 

 
 Sheri Green – Strategic Director (ES) 
 Matt Roberts – CSO, CSU 

 
 

CABINET  & LEAD 
MEMBERS: 
 

Councillor Mrs A Allen MBE, Councillor D A 
Hammock and Councillor A R Martin 
 

 
PRESENT TO RESPOND TO ISSUES RAISED BY THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
 
 Inspector G Woodward – Dartford Neighbourhood Inspector, 

Kent Police, Dartford CSU 
 Debbie Stock – Chief Operating Officer, Dartford, 

Gravesham and Swanley Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) 

 Andrew Scott-Clarke – Acting Director, Public Health, KCC 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor A Sandhu MBE 
(Substitute Cllr. E J Lampkin), Councillor Mrs S P Butterfill, Councillor S J 
Doran (Substitute Cllr. G T Prout) Councillor D J Mote and Councillor Mrs J A 
Rickwood. 
 
The Chairman noted that C.I. Ian Humphreys, Dartford District Commander, 
Kent Police was unable to attend the meeting due to pressing operational 
duties and welcomed Inspector Gary Woodward, Kent Police, Dartford’s 
Neighbourhood Inspector based in the CSU. 
. 
The Chairman welcomed Debbie Stock, Chief Operating Officer from the 
Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 JULY 2014 
 
 

2 

Andrew Scott–Clark, Acting Director for Public Health from KCC and looked 
forward to their presentations. 
 
The presence of the Deputy Leader, Lead Members Councillor Ann Allen and 
Councillor Dave Hammock were noted, also that of the Strategic Director (ES) 
and the Community Safety Officer. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

3. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 12 
FEBRUARY 2014  
 
  RESOLVED: 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 February 2014 be confirmed. 
 

4. URGENT ITEMS  
 
The Chairman advised that there were no urgent items for consideration by 
the Committee. 
 

5. TO CONSIDER REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY)  
 
There were no references from other Committees. 
 
 

6. CHAIRMAN'S UPDATE  
 
The Chairman advised Members that the PCC and Kent’s Deputy Chief 
Constable had provisionally accepted an invitation to speak at the next 
Committee meeting on 11 February 2015 about the ‘Policing Vision for Kent’ 
to be followed by a Q and A session. The meeting would be held in the 
Council Chamber to allow all Council Members to attend. 
 

7. REGULATION 9 NOTICE  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the contents of the published Regulation 9 Notice for the period 16 June 
2014 to 31 October 2014 be noted. 
 

8. DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP (CCG): CONTRIBUTION TO THE AIMS OF THE CSP  
 
The Chairman renewed his welcome to Debbie Stock, Chief Operating 
Officer, Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) and thanked her for agreeing to make a presentation to the Committee 

Agenda Item 3 Page 2



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 JULY 2014 
 
 

3 

on the contribution of the CCG to the aims of the Dartford and Gravesham 
Community Safety Partnership (CSP). 
 
The Chief Operating Officer advised the Committee that the CCG was a small 
lean group, comprising a Board of 6 GPs plus officers who worked in 
partnership with the Public Health Directorate of Kent County Council to 
commission services on behalf of GPs in the Dartford, Gravesham and 
Swanley areas.  
 

The principal aim of the CCG was to identify and meet GP need in terms of 
patient care with as little bureaucracy as possible. The CCG was a GP 
membership organisation, it did not commission GPs - this was the role of 
NHS England. Rather the CCG worked closely with GPs in its area to identify 
issues and where services were not working, to commission them on behalf of 
GPs.  This was particularly important in terms of securing financial savings in 
the continuing climate of fiscal constraint in which NHS funding had been 
frozen in real terms and would be subject to a significant cut in 2015/16, when 
a portion of the current NHS funding stream would be transferred to the Social 
Care budget. 
 
Members received a PowerPoint presentation covering the following principal 
areas of CCG operation: 
 
CCG Vision 
 
To be a clinically led and innovative commissioning organisation that puts 
patients first, improves their healthcare outcomes and operates with minimal 
bureaucracy, underpinned by the following corporate objectives: 
 

• Reducing health inequalities and preventing ill health 
• Delivering high quality and safe care including primary care 
• Commissioning Comprehensive Healthcare focused around patient 

care and experience: ‘right care, right place, right time, right outcome’  
• Driving efficiency and value for money, without reducing quality of care 
• Ensuring effective engagement with patients, carers and the wider 

population 
• Leading continued innovation, research and education & training to 

stay ahead of the field and successfully plan for the future 
• Maintaining organisational health, robust governance and continued 

good reputation 
 
CCG contribution to the CSP Priority Areas 2014/15 of: 
 

• Anti-social behaviour  
• Violent crime including domestic abuse  

• Substance misuse (alcohol and drug‐related crime and ASB)  
• Property crime (domestic burglary and theft offences)  
• Reducing re-offending  
• Road Safety  

Agenda Item 3Page 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 JULY 2014 
 
 

4 

The CCG commissioned a wide range of services to support improvements in 
health and wellbeing including acute, community and mental health services 
and worked closely with Public Health to identify key priorities based on the 
health needs of the population. Almost 2/3rds of the NHS budget is devoted to 
hospitals. As a GP membership organisation CCGs worked with GP’s to 
provide support outside hospitals to identify issues and where services are not 
working for patients following discharge.  

The main area of commissioning that contributed to CSP priorities revolved 
around mental health and related to both Children and Adults. Almost 1/3rd of 
GP consultations currently related to mental health problems.  The CCG was 
building integrated primary care teams around GP practices to improve 
sharing of information and care planning across agencies to try and get away 
from the ‘silo’ approach of health care and make earlier interventions in the 
high risk and elderly patient categories. 

The CCG was also working in partnership with Health and Wellbeing Boards 
in the area to tackle the key CSP priority areas of Domestic Abuse, Substance 
Misuse and Mental health issues. 

 

Domestic abuse 
• Domestic abuse was known to be under reported but reporting was in 

increasing in Dartford which was considered to be positive. In the case 
of significant physical and health impacts arising from incidents of 
domestic abuse the KCC Public Health team commissioned the 
necessary resources; 

• Working with Healthy Young Minds (KCC service), CAMHS, KMPT and 
Public Health to improve emotional wellbeing of victims especially 
children – particularly ensuring health practitioners know how to spot 
signs of domestic abuse (Safeguarding) etc. 

 
Substance misuse 
 

• Worked closely with KCC public health and drug and alcohol teams to 
address drug and alcohol abuse. Linked with public health to look at 
alcohol pathways and improving referrals to treatment (Integrated Care 
Pathway processes both from the acute hospital and in the community) 

• Integrated Primary care teams worked to identify and support patients 
with problems and referring them appropriately. Reviewing data at GP 
practice level to support the targeting of interventions. 

 
Mental health 
 

• Core commissioning responsibility to improve access to mental health 
services for adults and children and ensure that effective early 
prevention treatment is provided 

• Supporting emotional resilience and wellbeing programmes in 
communities with public health and KCC 

• Personality Disorder peer support group development - supporting 
people to share issues and concerns and receiving support from others 

Agenda Item 3 Page 4



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 JULY 2014 
 
 

5 

who have experienced similar situations Key aim is to build confidence 
and social skills 

• Working with KCC on developing and implementing an all age pathway 
for people with autism and ADHD 

• Increasing access to psychological therapy support 
• Early intervention workers – supporting young people with psychosis 

and their families to get the right support 
• Commissioned the Porchlight service to provide individually tailored 

support to individuals with mental health needs to access community 
resources and reduce social isolation. 

 
Conclusion  
 

• Public Health (KCC) were the key commissioners of preventative 
service that aimed to have a positive impact on the Community Safety 
Plan 

• NHS England had the responsibility for commissioning health and 
preventative services within prisons  

• CCG commissioning of Mental health services aimed to support people 
with a wide level of mental health needs to manage their conditions and 
improve their health outcomes 

• The DGS Health and Wellbeing Board were an important vehicle for 
improving joint working between agencies. 

 
The Chairman thanked the Chief Operating Officer for a very comprehensive 
presentation and invited Andrew Scott-Clark, Acting Director of Public Health 
at KCC to apprise Members of the Public Health dimension to the aims of the 
CSP. 
 
The Acting Director advised Members that all drug and alcohol interventions 
throughout Kent were now commissioned through KDAAT [Kent Drugs and 
Alcohol Action Team]. Previously, under the provisions of the 1997 Heath and 
Care Act, Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) in Kent had commissioned single 
services from within the KCC Communities Directorate, who had also been 
responsible for the provision of Drug care within prisons. The Department of 
Health (DoH) emphasis in previous years had been on drugs rather than 
alcohol, aimed at getting addicts and users off the streets and into evidence 
based regimes and back into society.  
 
The provisions of the Health and Social Care Act allocated a health budget to 
KCC of £49.9M for the community as a whole. Growth on the budget had 
increased with East Kent PCT becoming more dependent than West Kent 
PCT in terms of budget requirement. However, with no increase in central 
Government provision the present expenditure could only be maintained not 
increased.  
 
The KDAAT contract for the provision of drug and alcohol interventions and 
treatment services had been inherited from the NHS and was separate to 
KCC’s Public Health provision which was in turn separate from CCG’s; but all 
services had to compete for finances out of the one £49.9M budget provision. 

Agenda Item 3Page 5



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 JULY 2014 
 
 

6 

 
Members were advised that given the acknowledged impact alcohol abuse 
had on public health; KDAAT, KCC Public Health, CCGs and Kent Community 
Partnerships were now increasingly working together in a new co-ordinated 
alcohol strategy. The previous focus on treatment of alcohol abuse had not 
been systematic or linked across the agencies. The extended drinking 
opportunities provided by the night-time economy, allied to the established 
habit of drinkers pre-loading at home, had led to a reported 3 fold increase in 
liver damage being reported. Whilst the public appeared to understand unit 
consumption and the health impact of excessive drinking, they did not 
necessarily relate this to their personal consumption.  A systematic patient ID 
and Intervention programme across Kent was required to address the 
problem of alcoholism and stop the revolving door cycle of treatment and seek 
long-term cures for patients to get them back into work and society.  
 
The Acting Director said that the new co-ordinated alcohol strategy was 
tailored to the aims of the CSP and had a robust treatment pathway. It was 
also linked to local Health and Wellbeing Boards through a shared plan. 
However, this was not enough in the long-term. The next step was to focus 
increasingly on prevention through schools and Kent Police getting the right 
work done at the right time in the right place. 
 
In concluding his remarks the Acting Director advised that the recently 
published Public Health England 2014 Health Profile for Dartford had   
reflected well generally on the overall health of the majority of the Borough’s 
residents. 
 
In response to specific questions from Members the Acting Director and the 
Chief Operating Officer confirmed the following points for the Committee: 
 

• Liver damage caused by alcohol abuse was acknowledged as a 
historical problem but the recorded incidence of liver damage through 
hospital admissions was increasing and a co-ordinated intervention by 
Public Health and partner agencies was now required to address the 
issue; 

• Licensing legislation placed a duty on landlords to operate responsibly 
and assess customers who appeared intoxicated or likely to behave in 
an anti-social manner, but Public Health needed to do more to re-
enforce the message and dangers to the public of excessive drinking, 
in addition to local authorities reviewing licenses and interceding with 
landlords when concerns were raised by the public; 

• Low alcohol pricing was an acknowledged ‘driver’ of increased home 
consumption and ‘pre-loading’ but any move to national pricing of 
alcohol was the concern of central Government. 

 
The Community Safety Officer (CSO) confirmed for Members that the 
Council’s Licensing and Enforcement Officers took a very proactive approach 
over any complaints concerning individual licence holders and worked with 
them to identify and enforce solutions. 

Agenda Item 3 Page 6



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 JULY 2014 
 
 

7 

 
The Shadow Chairman noted that in terms of commissioning services there 
appeared to be many competing bodies and agencies at the local and county 
level and expressed a concern that a degree of overlap was difficult to avoid.  
 
The Chief Operating Officer acknowledged this difficulty. She advised that the 
change to local commissioning of services by CCGs was an important step 
with GP Boards taking a clinical approach from the perspective of the patient 
to commissioning services. However, changing the commissioning of health 
services from a hospital based to a community based operation would 
continue to be challenging given the need to integrate the requirements of 
CCGs, KCC Public Health and Wellbeing Boards. 
 
The Acting Director added, in further explanation, that formerly PCTs had 
been responsible for commissioning all health services employing a national 
template to try to address all local need. The change to commissioning by a 
variety of health bodies including NHS England, Local Authority Public Health, 
CCGs and Wellbeing Boards was complex and required the separate bodies 
to follow an integrated agenda with both dedicated central and tertiary health 
pathways and clear commissioning to maximise resources, avoid overlap and 
achieve the best outcomes for patients through a common direction of travel.  
 
The Strategic Director (ES) pointed out that the Health Profile for Dartford, in 
common with several other areas in Kent, highlighted violent crime as being a 
cause for concern. She further advised that the Health and Wellbeing Boards 
were in their first 12 months of operation and integrated working over health 
issues was new. However the success of the Community Safety Partnership 
over the past 15 years and the Dartford CSU in the past 5 + years, 
demonstrated the benefits of co-located multi-agency working. The similar 
integration of health providers would in time derive similar advantages and 
benefits and enable them to work in a more co-ordinated and structured 
fashion and link more effectively with the CSU, Kent Police and the Council’s 
Housing team in a holistic approach to meeting patient need. 
 
She saw the role of the Health and Wellbeing Boards and their sub-groups as 
growing in importance and providing important linking mechanisms to address 
the needs of patients and victims, many of whom required assistance in more 
than one of these frequently inter-related areas and required a co-ordinated 
and holistic approach to be taken to successfully address individual problems 
of residents. 
 
She added that it would also be important for CCGs and the KCC Public 
Health team to work closely together in addressing patient /victim need in an 
effort to address increasing presentations at A&E and incidents of alcohol 
fuelled public violence and domestic abuse. 
 
The Chairman invited Councillor Ann Allen to address the Committee in her 
role as a Dartford representative on the Dartford and Gravesham and 
Swanley Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 7



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 JULY 2014 
 
 

8 

Councillor Allen said that she was heartened by the progress the Health and 
Wellbeing Board was making in conjunction with KCC, and the partnership 
working between the Children’s Board and the Children’s Operating Board. 
Useful work was also being undertaken in schools with Head Teachers under 
the ‘Freedom Programme’ for kids with a particular area of work being 
undertaken with young boys who were verbally or physically abusing their 
Mothers. The Dementia Society was also working well in the community and 
addressing the transport needs of their members in co-operation with the Go-
Ahead bus company. A further body of integrated working was being 
undertaken by the Youth Council in training children how to cope with 
dementia sufferers in their families.  
 
The CSO advised Members of work being proposed to support children who 
had witnessed domestic violence (DA) including a project to address 
adolescent violence, where children, including those who as a result of 
witnessing DA, were being violent towards their parents. Other projects 
including the schools based ‘Love Shouldn’t Hurt’ programme, were being 
driven forward by the Dartford & Gravesham Domestic Abuse Forum. 
 
In a final reference to the importance of integrated working across agencies 
the Acting Director for Public Health underlined the importance of health 
bodies working closely with local authority Housing departments and in 
particular with older tenants. Falls in the home were frequently the starting 
point for aged residents to becoming institutionalized; aged residents who 
were socially isolated tended to have more health problems which were also 
more difficult to address because of their social isolation. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Acting Director for his comments, the Chief 
Operating Officer for her presentation and Councillor Allen for her contribution 
to the discussion. 
 

9. KENT POLICE AND CRIME PANEL (PCP)  
 
The Chairman welcomed the Deputy Leader and renewed the Committee’s 
thanks for his agreement to provide a regular Police and Crime Panel (PCP) 
update to the Committee as Dartford’s current PCP representative.  
 
The Deputy Leader advised that since his initial update to the Committee on 
the background and the workings of the PCP in February 2014, the Panel   
had met twice in the intervening period on 28 May and 5 June.  
 
Members were informed that on 28 May the Panel had considered a report 
concerning the recording of crime in Kent. The Panel had requested the report 
following the Commissioner’s decision in early 2013 to ask Her Majesty’s 
Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC) to undertake an audit of crime recording 
by Kent Police. The HMIC audit had revealed a 90% accuracy rate for 
recording crime in Kent which the HMIC had considered to be unsatisfactory. 
Reporting by Kent Police had subsequently improved and the accuracy rate 
for Kent crime recording was now between 96-97% [as at June 2014].  
 

Agenda Item 3 Page 8



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 JULY 2014 
 
 

9 

The Deputy Leader added that HMIC were now in the process of inspecting 
every force in the country and findings from 13 Forces audited to date 
revealed an average of only 80% accuracy for reporting crime with some 
Forces recording significantly lower figures of accuracy. He said by 
comparison, Kent’s reporting (even at early 2013 levels) was good.  
 
The Panel had also considered the PCC’s pledge to engage with the Kent 
public in her role as the primary link between the public and the police through 
a communications strategy involving twitter, road shows and public meetings. 
The Commissioner’s communications strategy had subsequently been 
brought into sharp focus following the airing of the controversial Channel 4 
Cutting Edge documentary aired on 29 May entitled ‘Meet the Police 
Commissioner’.  
 
The Panel had formally requested that the Commissioner attend the PCP 
meeting on 5 June to explain her participation in the documentary which had 
been carefully edited by the producers [without the PCC’s approval] for 
maximum impact and had attracted much critical media comment. The Panel 
had felt that the documentary reflected poorly on the PCC and her judgement 
and may have damaged the reputation of Kent Police. The Panel had sought 
an explanation from Ann Barnes 
  
The Deputy Leader had cautioned against nugatory action which the PCP in 
any case could not enforce. There were also the financial implications of a 
further PCC election process that resignation would trigger, estimated at 
some £3M. He believed that the PCC was in the job for the right reasons and 
that she had been shocked by the documentary and the reaction to it from the 
PCP, Kent Police and the public. 
 
The PCC had formally apologised to the Panel, to Kent Police and the public. 
The Commissioner also regretted not clearing her proposals to participate in 
the documentary in advance with the Panel, whilst noting that the Panel was 
aware of the project from cameras in the Kent Chamber and Panel Members 
[including the Deputy Leader] participating in interviews with the camera team. 
The Commissioner had confirmed that she had sought advice from her team, 
but that the final decision to participate in the documentary had been hers. On 
reflection she conceded that, had she to take the decision again, she would 
not have participated in the Channel 4 documentary.  
 
In accepting the Commissioner’s apology on 5 June, the Panel had asked the 
PCC to reconsider her Communications Protocol in the light of events and to 
bring a revised document to the next PCP meeting for discussion and 
approval [24 July 2014]. 
 
In subsequent discussion Members expressed a variety of opinions over the 
role and judgement of the PCC, the continued tenure of her position, the 
adverse impact the Channel 4 documentary had had on her reputation and 
that of Kent Police, and the damage to the public’s perception of both Ann 
Barnes as PCC and Kent Police.  
 

Agenda Item 3Page 9



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 JULY 2014 
 
 

10 

The consensus view amongst Members was that the office of PCC and the 
checks and balances to her powers provided by the PCP were an 
improvement on the previous Police Authority arrangements. The PCC was 
an elected position and the office holder was able to hold Chief Constables to 
account. However, Members also agreed that Ann Barnes had damaged her 
reputation by participating in the Channel 4 documentary.  
 
It was agreed that in future the minutes of the PCP would be included within 
the Committee’s agenda papers with any report from the Council’s 
representative on the PCP providing supplementary background, context and 
comment. 
 
 

10. PERFORMANCE  
 
The Committee considered the Performance Report presented to the Dartford 
and Gravesham Community Safety Partnership (CSP) on 26 June 2014, 
detailing performance relating to levels of crime and anti-social behaviour 
recorded in Dartford and Gravesham during the financial year 2013-14. The 
report also compared the position of both Boroughs to other Kent Districts and 
areas within the ‘Most Similar Group’ - areas that have a similar demographic 
to the joint Dartford & Gravesham CSP area. 
 
The CSO advised the Committee that the rise in crime statistics recorded in 
the report should be viewed in the context of both the changes to crime 
categories, as advised to Members at the last meeting on 12 February 2014, 
when the Committee considered the CSP’s Strategic Assessment document 
and the highly accurate way that Kent Police were now recording crimes 
following Her Majesty’s Inspectorate for Constabulary (HMIC) inspection of 
Kent Police carried out the previous year (2013). 
 
Members were reminded that crime statistics now fell into two distinct 
categories: 
 

(i) Victim based crime e.g. assault; and 
 

(ii) Crimes against society e.g. arrest for possession of drugs 
 

Both categories were compared against an anticipated rate created using 
crime reported over a 5 year period to establish a performance trend. 
Previously, performance was based against crimes committed in a 12 month 
period against crime committed in the previous corresponding 12 month 
period. This had led to a ‘target driven’ culture to combat crime by Kent 
Police, which had now been replaced by focusing on lowering ‘risk and harm’ 
rather than chasing numerical targets.  
 
The change in policy for recording crime followed the inspection by Her 
Majesty’s Inspectorate for Constabulary (HMIC) into Kent Police crime 
recording methods in 2013. The HMIC inspection had found that recording of 
crime by Kent Police was 90% accurate. Accuracy levels had now risen 

Agenda Item 3 Page 10



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 JULY 2014 
 
 

11 

further to around 96% and compared favourably with other Police Forces 
presently being inspected by HMIC across England. Crime recording by some 
Forces showed accuracy levels around 70-75% with some areas as low as 
60%. The increase in accuracy by Kent Police had led to more crimes being 
recorded and had had the effect of 'artificially' inflating the area’s crime rate. 
This meant that it would be difficult to compare performance against previous 
years until a baseline year could be created, once the recording changes had 
‘settled in’. Other Forces currently being inspected by HMIC will have to adjust 
their own crime reporting in the same way that Kent had, now known as the 
‘Kent Test’. 
 
The CSO advised of a further important factor to be taken into account by 
Members when noting the increase in recorded crime in the Performance 
report. Following the HMIC inspection in 2013 some 2,000 (two thousand) 
new offences (mostly historic and relating to domestic abuse) had been added 
to the 2012-13 crime figures.  This had inevitably led to an increase in 
recorded crime in the report, skewing the in-year figures. There were positive 
outcomes to note however in the 2013-14 period under review. Repeat 
incidents of Domestic Violence (DV) were down and victim confidence was 
increasing as evidenced by increased reporting of domestic abuse; something 
that is considered to be a positive rather than a negative; as it shows that 
victims have confidence in the police and other agencies and are prepared to 
come forward as a result.  
 
Members were also asked to note that the new recording strictures imposed 
by HMIC on Kent Police had yet to be rolled-out across all Forces listed in the 
Most Similar Group (MSG) table on page 2 of the report [agenda page 20]. 
Dartford & Gravesham’s position [14th] was not straightforward therefore and 
the position of other CSPs in the table misleading. 
 
In response to specific questions from Members the CSO gave the following 
responses:  
 

• Bluewater Effect - shoplifting offences at the complex were now 
recorded separately enabling Dartford figures to be viewed more 
accurately. Vehicle offences (theft of and from a motor vehicle) at 
Bluewater were recorded separately but were low in comparison to the 
rest of Dartford given the high numbers of vehicles passing through 
Bluewater every day; 

• It was not known whether the historical data used to forecast the 5 year 
forecast for crime in the Boroughs going forward was based on 90% 
reporting or a higher extrapolated per-centage figure. The CSO 
undertook to consult with a Kent Police analyst on this point; 

• Similarly it was not clear which crime rate data would be included in the 
anticipated crime rate, or whether previous years recorded crime would 
be adjusted to match current recording practices following the HMIC 
inspection. The CSO would check this point also with the police analyst 
given the importance of having a stable and accurate base-line to be 

Agenda Item 3Page 11



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 JULY 2014 
 
 

12 

able to compare recorded crime going forward for 2015/16 and 
2016/17; 

• Previous year on year comparisons [up to 2012-13] were valid and 
both Boroughs had experienced drops in crime levels over the last five 
years. It was perhaps inevitable that an increase would occur but it was 
not possible to state with certainty whether the current increase in 
crime statistics was due to an actual increase in crime or a result of the 
increases in crime being recorded following the HMIC inspection and 
the Home Office crime classification changes; 

• Dartford’s position in the Kent comparator table on page 2 of the report 
[agenda page 20] should be seen in the context of the incomplete roll-
out of the ‘Kent Test’ by HMIC and the cross-border crime the Borough 
continued to suffer from given its proximity to the major A2 and M25 
arterial routes and the continuing impact of the Bluewater Complex on 
Dartford’s overall crime figures. 

 
The Strategic Director (ES) advised Members that Dartford and Gravesham 
may never reach a stable base-line for the calculation of recorded crime going 
forward. Further changes in crime categories by the Home Office were always 
possible but what was important was to make the best use of the statistics 
and data available and contextualise that information in the Most Similar 
Group comparator exercise. Establishing a stable base-line was perhaps akin 
to seeking the Holy Grail and the most important measurement tool for the 
Police was public satisfaction and the positive impact policing measures were 
achieving in local communities. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the contents of the Performance Report be noted. 
 

11. COMMUNITY SAFETY PLAN 2014-15  
 
The Committee were asked to note the contents of the Dartford & Gravesham 
Community Safety Partnership (CSP) Community Safety Plan 2014-15. 
 
The Community Safety Officer (CSO) advised that the priorities identified in 
the 2014-15 Community Safety Plan were the same as those identified in the 
previous Plan for 2013-14 and considered by the Committee on 12 February 
2014 in the CSP’s annual Strategic Assessment document. In this sense the 
2014-15 Plan was a refresh document, not an entirely new plan. 
 
The CSO reminded the Committee of the main priorities for the CSP as laid 
out in page 4 of the Plan [agenda page 30]. He advised that there had been 
some changes to the number and format of several CSP Sub Groups, namely 
the Violent Crime Groups which had been disbanded and the work shared 
between the Domestic Abuse Forum (looking at domestic violence) and the 
Drugs and Alcohol Action Group (looking at alcohol related violence in the 
night time economy).  
 

Agenda Item 3 Page 12



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 JULY 2014 
 
 

13 

The Domestic Abuse Forum had been looking at new measures such as 
‘Claire’s Law’ which enables people to see if their new partners have a history 
of domestic abuse as well as other prevention injunction mechanisms; 
enhancing multi-agency co-operation at 1-Stop-Shops to address Domestic 
Abuse and a programme to support children who have witnessed DA.  
 
The work of the Substance Misuse Group included looking at ways to combat 
the increasing use of ‘legal highs’ such as nitrous oxide inhalation, as well as 
looking at ways to address alcohol related violence.  
 
Combating property crime was being pursued by supporting the efforts of the 
Business Crime Reduction Partnership, Dartford Town Against Crime (DTAC).  
 
Kent Probation had now split to form a National Probation Service that will be 
responsible for the ‘high risk’ offenders and a number of area based 
Community Rehabilitation Companies (CRCs) that will be responsible for the 
rest. This meant that the Reducing Reoffending group would start to work with 
the local CRC to find better ways to address issues caused by those repeat 
offenders who serve sentences of 12 months or less; a group that often 
commits high numbers of offences over their criminal lifetimes. Such 
interventions might include voluntary tagging under the ‘Operation Buddy’ 
scheme; a project that had been very successful and now had offenders 
asking to be part of the scheme. It worked by providing boundaries for 
offenders who, by being tagged, had a good excuse not to get involved with 
peers who might otherwise involve them in crime. The voluntary tagging also 
enabled the Police to save valuable time and resources by first checking via 
GPS where a tagged offender was at any given time and ruling them out of 
enquiries at an early stage, rather than seeking them out and arresting them 
when a crime was committed that fitted a given offender’s profile. 
 
The Road Safety Group had been working to improve road safety measures. 
Dartford had seen a drop in the number of those killed or seriously injured 
(KSI). However, Dartford’s proximity to the A2 and M25 major arterial routes 
meant that 75% of those involved in KSIs were non-Dartford residents 
travelling through the area and not therefore truly representative of the 
Borough’s drivers. 
 
In conclusion the 2014-15 Plan had the same priorities but new Sub-Groups 
with revised action plans for each priority area. 
 
One Member noted that the Priorities originally identified in the 2014-15 Plan 
were, broadly speaking, the same as those within the Kent Police and Crime 
Commissioner’s plan. He expressed interest in two specific areas of CSP 
activity: 
 

(i) The possibility of a voluntary agreement to govern the sale of super-
strength beers by both supermarkets and other retail outlets and 
how this might be implemented in terms agreed sale targets; 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 13



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 JULY 2014 
 
 

14 

(ii) The reduction in the repeat incidents of Domestic Abuse was 
welcomed and asked if the poster campaign linked to the recent 
World Cup in Brazil and displayed prominently throughout the 
Borough had been successful in raising public awareness. 

 
The CSO advised that England’s early exit from the World Cup had in many 
ways probably helped as the number of incidents of domestic abuse over the 
World Cup period had been lower than expected. Increased reporting of DA 
was seen as a positive thing but needed to be tempered by keeping repeat 
offences down by using the right interventions at the right times.  
 
The Lead Member for Licencing and Enforcement saw value in trying to 
discourage supermarket chains from selling alcohol as ‘loss leaders’ at 
significantly reduced prices, which fuelled ‘pre-loading’ habits by customers at 
home, prior to indulging in the extended licensing hours available in Dartford’s 
Night-Time economy. He also highlighted the problem of off-licences who sold 
super-strength beer on a can by can basis and often continued to do so to the 
same customer, even when they were clearly drunk. 
 
The CSO assured Members that where such incidents came to notice, CSU 
and Trading Standards Officers ensured swift action was taken with individual 
offending retailers. However he doubted whether supermarket chains would 
sign-up to a voluntary agreement to limit the sales of super-strength beers 
and added that the real target was those people who drink super- strength 
alcohol and cause a nuisance to members of the public, including in the Town 
Centre and around Central Park.   
 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Committee notes the contents of the CSP’s Community Safety 
Plan 2014-15. 

 
12. WORK PROGRAMME  

 
The Chairman asked Members to approve the current Work Plan as set out in 
Appendix A to the report.  
 
Members noted in the context of the regular PCP update item that the name 
of Dartford’s representative on the Panel could change following the May 
2015 local elections and that the Appendix should be amended to reflect this 
possibility. 
 
The Chairman noted this requirement. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Committee’s current Work Plan for 2014-15 and beyond as 
set out in Appendix A to the report be approved with the following 
addition / amendment; 

Agenda Item 3 Page 14



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 23 JULY 2014 
 
 

15 

 
(i) References in the current Work Plan concerning Dartford’s 

representative on the PCP be amended to be non-specific 
beyond the February 2015 meeting.  
 

13. COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE 2013-14 MUNICIPAL YEAR  
 
The Chairman thanked the Committee Co-ordinator for preparing the draft 
Crime and Disorder (Overview & Scrutiny) Annual Report 2013-14 and 
commended it to Members for approval and presentation to the next meeting 
of the General Assembly of the Council without amendment. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Committee’s Annual Report for 2013-14 be submitted to the 
next meeting of the General Assembly of the Council as presented in 
the agenda document.  

 
The meeting closed at 21:35 

 
  

Councillor R J Wells 
CHAIRMAN 

Agenda Item 3Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



27 January 2015 - 31 May 2015 
 

1 of 2 

 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LIST OF FORTHCOMING KEY DECISIONS – REGULATION 9 NOTICE 
 
This document lists all key decisions due  to be taken  in the forthcoming 4 months in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meeting and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. It also lists and contains particulars of 
any items where it is likely that the public will be excluded because consideration of the matter in public would disclose confidential of 
exempt information. The reasons for going into closed session are given in each case. An updated list will be published monthly. 
 
All decisions are made by Cabinet collectively. 
 
Cabinet Members: 
 
Councillor J A Kite, MBE, Portfolio: Leader & Overall Strategy 
Councillor A R Martin, Portfolio: Deputy Leader, Strategic Council Finances & Strategic Service Provision 
Councillor P F Coleman, Portfolio: Front Line Services, Customer Champion & Housing 
Councillor A R Lloyd, Portfolio: Environment, Leisure & Facilities 
Councillor C J Shippam, Portfolio: Town Centre 
Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow, Portfolio: Events, Attractions & Heritage 
 
All of the reports contained in this list, where open to the public, will be published on the Council’s website www.dartford.gov.uk at least 5 
clear days before the day of the meeting or, if later, whenever they become available. All reports provide details of any background 
documents which have been relied upon to a material degree during production of the report, or relied upon when formulating 
recommendations or options for decision. Hard copies or extracts from these reports can be obtained on request by emailing 
memberservices@dartford.gov.uk. 
 
This notice supersedes all previous notices. 

A
genda Item

 6
P

age 17



 

2 of 2 
 

TITLE OF REPORT AND BRIEF 
SUMMARY OF MATTER TO BE 
DECIDED 

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD WITHIN 
WHICH THE 
DECISION WILL 
BE TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM 

WHO IS TO BE 
CONSULTED BEFORE 
TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW 

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR 

OPEN OR CLOSED 
(if closed the 
reason is specified) 

New Build Housing Project Update 
 
This report provides an update on 
the progress being made relating to 
the Council’s new build HRA housing 
project. It will contain both an update 
on the Planning applications for the 
three sites and the procurement 
process being followed to build the 
housing units. The report will also 
detail the tender returns and provide 
the basis for a recommendation to 
appoint a contractor to build the 
housing units. 
 

Cabinet 
5 Mar 2015 
 

  
 

Peter Dosad, Head of Housing 
Tel: 01322 343327 
peter.dosad@dartford.gov.uk 

CLOSED - if 
reference needs to 
be made to the 
Appendix to this 
report which is 
exempt under 
Paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended). 

A
genda Item

 6
P

age 18



1 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

KENT AND MEDWAY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel held in the 
Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Thursday, 24 July 
2014. 
 
PRESENT: Mr P M Hill, OBE (Chairman), Mr Gurvinder Sandher (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr P Clokie, Cllr P Todd, Cllr T Martin, Cllr Mrs S Chandler, Cllr J Burden, 
Cllr L Wicks, Cllr R Turpin, Cllr P Fleming, Cllr Campbell, Cllr C Derrick, 
Mr R A Latchford, OBE, Mr G Cowan, Mr Dan McDonald, Mrs P A V Stockell 
(Substitute) (Substitute for Cllr Mrs A Blackmore) and Cllr K Pugh (Substitute) 
(Substitute for Mr A H T Bowles) 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mrs A Barnes, Mr S Nolan and Mr O Shaw 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mr M Campbell (Policy Officer) and Mr J Cook (Scrutiny 
Research Officer) 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 

90. Introduction/Webcast Announcement  
(Item 1) 
 
�� �������	
�����������������
����������	��	���
�����������	��������
	�������������	�������

���	���������
���������������	�����������������������	�������������	�	�������
����

 
91. Apologies  and Substitutes  

(Item ) 
 

92. Declarations of Interest  
(Item ) 
 

93. Minutes of the Police and Crime Panel held on 05/06/14  
(Item 4) 
 
1. RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings held on 28 May and 5 June 2014 be 

approved as a correct record and that they be signed by the Chairman. 

 
 

94. Engagement Strategy  
(Item B1) 
 
1. The Commissioner introduced her report on her Engagement Strategy, outlining 

the changes in focus and implementation.  The Commissioner said that the key 

points included highlighting the continued focus on listening to communities and 

developing and maintaining a dialogue between the Commissioner, the police and 

relevant partners to improve local understanding.  The Commissioner said that 

this refined approach will acknowledge the excellent work carried out by Kent 

Agenda Item 8Page 19



 

2 

Police, the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner as well as the partner 

agencies and Kent Police’s corporate and internal communications teams.  The 

Commissioner said that, in common with other Commissioners her initial 

communication and engagement work was centred on explaining the role of the 

PCC but this phase of the strategy had now been largely completed. The 

Commissioner said that her revised  strategy will focus on  business as usual, 

promoting a corporate and professional image through tailored and balanced 

engagement and communication activities that are designed to suit the relevant 

audiences. 

 

2. The Commissioner summed up the main points of her refined strategy as being 

focused on local engagement, a more corporate and policy orientated online 

presence, improved partnership working and a closer relationship with the Police 

and Crime Panel.  Some specific actions planned included the creation of a new 

corporate PCC Twitter account, the retiring of the Commissioner’s Community 

Outreach bus, using Police local profiles to plan targeted engagement activities, 

encouraging Panel members to join the Commissioner in local engagement 

activities and a review of the general style and tone in response to Members’ 

comments at the previous Panel meeting.  

 

3. The Commissioner commented that it was her strong desire to ensure that Kent 

Police were supported in continuing to be an excellent Force.  The newly 

instituted People Board was one measure designed to achieve this and in 

addition, she would be making informal visits to Police Stations around the county 

and engaging with the staff support associations.  The Commissioner added that 

a positive aspect of the past issues discussed at the Panel and in the media had 

been to cause all involved to step back and reflect on ways to improve. 

 

4. The Chairman thanked the Commissioner for her comments, stressing the 

Panel’s primary focus was the need to change inappropriate behaviours such as 

‘campaigning’ through excessive media presence, an alteration in tone and style 

to a more professional and respectful approach in the Commissioner’s dealings 

with all parties and general improvement in attitude to engagement with the Panel 

and the Police. 

 

5. The Commissioner emphasised that her reviewed engagement strategy reflected 

her refined approach of tailoring all further communication and engagement to suit 

the audience. 

 

6. Members engaged in a discussion with the Commissioner on various aspects of 

her report and verbal update.  The main points covered included advice on 

management of social media and pitfalls of holding more than one Twitter account 

as well as the nature of appropriate communication and how important leadership 

skills were in striking the right tone. 

 

Agenda Item 8 Page 20



 

3 

7. Members raised concern that the Commissioner need not necessarily abandon 

the use of her community outreach bus.  Panel members commented that, if it 

was the most cost effective method of achieving her county wide engagement 

activities, then the Commissioner should consider retaining the vehicle. 

 

8. In response to a question about the difficulty of arranging for the Commissioner to 

attend District Council meetings, the Commissioner explained that she and the 

Chief Constable had written to all district councils outlining the plans for the 

People Board and other engagement opportunities. Members asked if the minutes 

of the People Board could be viewed by the Panel. The Commissioner said it had 

not yet been decided whether to provide minutes as there were specific HR 

issues being discussed that might not be suitable for publication. The 

Commissioner stated she would take the matter up with the Chief Constable to 

examine options for sharing information from the People Board. 

 

9. The Vice-Chairman expressed praise for the strong focus on partnership working 

that the Commissioner had outlined in her report.  He requested further detail on 

the representation and attendance at the People Board.  The Commissioner 

responded by explaining that the Board was very new but did examine equality 

and diversity issues within the Force and the People Board complements the 

Chief Constable’s Culture board which has similar staff welfare and attitude 

considerations that may impact on equality. 

 

10. Members commented that while there had been concerns on the panel regarding 

the Commissioner’s style, they were pleased with her response and commitment 

to improve the relationship with the panel in future.  Members stated that there is 

a desire to draw a line over what had taken place previously and for the Panel 

and the Commissioner to make progress. 

 

11. A member commented that the Chief Constable’s Culture board was an 

interesting development and asked whether the panel could be involved.  At this 

time, the Commissioner indicated that it was not possible due to potentially 

sensitive issues being raised and that the Chief Constable was still developing the 

board. 

 

12. In response to further questions about the People Board and whether they had 

impacted on the number of Governance Boards, the Commissioner explained that 

the new People Boards were being held in addition to her other meetings.  The 

Commissioner also invited members of the panel to visit her office for more 

information about the work of the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner, 

as well as which meetings Panel members might care to attend in future.  A 

member strongly supported the idea that Panel members should attend the 

People and Governance Boards. 

 

13. Several members made comment that they were pleased with the improved 

attitude and communication style evidenced by the Commissioner and that they 

Agenda Item 8Page 21



 

4 

were pleased with the progress made.  It was also suggested that the decision to 

retire the Commissioner’s community outreach bus was reviewed with the caveat 

that it be corporately branded to reflect the Office held rather than the Office 

holder. 

 

RESOLVED that the Panel note the Commissioner’s report and endorsed her 
decisions; 

a) To move away from a campaigning role. 

b) To undertake less ‘big bang’ publicity. 

c) To focus all publicity less on the Commissioner as an individual. 

d) To adopt a more corporate style on her website. 

The Panel also requested and received the Commissioner’s assurance that her 
engagement style with Police Officers and staff, Panel members and other partners 
would be modified. 
 
 
 

95. Corporate Communications  
(Item B2) 
 
1. The Commissioner introduced her report on Corporate Communications, stating 

that the history of the transfer of employment were already known to the panel 

and that she wished to explain the rationale behind her initial retention of the 

employment of the Corporate Communication and Research Bureau teams.  

When agreement had been reached that all other Police staff would transfer 

employment to the Chief Constable, the teams in question had been conducting 

an ongoing piece of work relating to communication and engagement.  Given that 

this was fundamental to the work of the Commissioner and would also benefit 

Kent Police, the Commissioner said that it was agreed by the Home Secretary 

that ownership of these teams could remain with the PCC until such time as it was 

appropriate and manageable to complete their transfer. 

 

2. The Commissioner said that now that the new Policing model has been 

implemented, which has heightened the core role of communication and 

engagement, she had agreed with the Chief Constable that now would be an 

appropriate time to complete the transfer of employment.  Linked with this is the 

fact that Kent Police will shortly be creating a new role of Head of Community 

Engagement which will develop the positive work of the Force and the 

Commissioner’s office in terms of working with the public.  The Commissioner 

regretted that there had been delays to the final transition, particularly due to the 

uncertainty this could case members of staff but was firm in the view that it was 

the right thing to do to wait until an appropriate strategic model could be put in 

place. 

 

Agenda Item 8 Page 22



 

5 

3. As a result of the communications and engagement project that the corporate 

teams had undertaken prior to the transfer, the new strategy for tailored police 

engagement would be rolling out soon with a pilot area already identified. 

 

4. Members welcomed the decision to transfer the teams to the employment of the 

Chief Constable and were pleased to hear more about the tailored communication 

strategies now being put in place as a result of the communication and 

engagement project the Corporate teams had been working on, particularly in 

terms of how this will benefit some communities that ignored police information 

because of the volume of leaflets and prevention advice that did not apply to 

them. 

 

5. Panel members praised the use of a pilot scheme in light of concerns that new 

communication strategies and tactics carried risks when first implemented as staff 

needed to acquire and develop new skills. 

 

6. The Commissioner emphasised that while the new strategy had highlighted 

opportunities to improve Kent Police’s engagement approach, she had nothing 

but praise for the work that had been carried out previously by the corporate 

communications team who had been exceptional at implementing ACPO 

approved communication programmes. 

 

RESOLVED that the Police and Crime Panel note the Commissioner’s report. 
 
 

96. Police Contact Points / Mobile Police Stations  
(Item B3) 
 
1. The Chairman explained that the this report had been produced to address the 

negative perception around the Police Contact Points that had been created as a 

result of their coverage in the ‘Meet the Commissioner’ Channel 4 documentary.   

 

2. The Commissioner explained that the footage used was from the early stages of 

the scheme and did not reflect how Police Contact Points were currently being 

used and how effective they have been.  The report to the Panel was developed 

by Kent Police as the Police Contact Points are an operational resource used at 

the discretion of the Chief Constable. 

 

3. The Commissioner said that, since April 2014, the Police Contact Points have 

been staffed by a dedicated team of PCSOs.  This has allowed the scheme to 

evolve and change depending on demand from the community.  Such 

engagement is made easy through use of Twitter by the PCSOs who can advise 

the public of their whereabouts and also respond to requests for Police Contact 

Point attendance.   

 

Agenda Item 8Page 23



 

6 

4. The Commissioner said that a recent review indicated that there had been 

between two and three formal outcomes a day from interaction between the public 

and Police at the Contact Points.  The Commissioner explained that “outcomes” 

refer only to information provided by the public resulting in either an Intelligence 

Report being submitted or the recording of a crime or incident.  The review did not 

record how many engagements had taken place where police staff and the public 

interact in a positive manner that can build confidence and develop relationships.  

The Commissioner said that this aspect is a core part of visible community 

policing and must be taken into account, particularly in light of HMIC’s recent 

report that highlighted the difficulties Police forces are encountering in maintaining 

visible community policing while making spending cuts. 

 

5. The Commissioner said that local groups can now bid for Mobile Police Station 

attendance either for addressing local concerns or to support community events 

that will allow for positive engagement.  All deployments are now at the discretion 

of the District Commander, with a Chief Inspector having complete control of all 

resources within that area. 

 

6. The Commissioner wished to congratulate the Chief Constable for the excellent 

management of the Mobile Police Stations and she believes they will continue to 

be useful resource for Kent Police. The Panel noted the Commissioner’s 

confirmation that the mobile police stations are an operational resource under the 

control and direction of the Chief Constable. 

 

RESOLVED that the Police and Crime Panel would note the Commissioner’s report.  
The Chairman further thanked the Commissioner for responding to the requests for 
updates the last meeting by bringing all three formal reports to the Panel. 
 
 

97. Commissioner's Decisions  
(Item C1) 
 
1. A member requested  clarification on the decision to implement the People 

Boards regarding the limited number of only two per year.  The Commissioner 

explained that they were new but promising and more would be held if necessary. 

 
 

98. Future work programme  
(Item D1) 
 

99. PCC Correspondence following 'Meet the Commissioner' documentary  
(Item D2) 
 
1. The Chairman explained that Mr Campbell, Policy Officer of the Panel, had 

produced the report in response to his review of correspondence arising from the 

Channel 4 documentary. 

Agenda Item 8 Page 24



 

7 

 

2. Mr Campbell explained that his aim was to confirm that no complaints had been 

received but not recorded from amongst the correspondence received by the 

Commissioner’s office in the wake of the Channel 4 documentary.   

 

3. In the course of assessing the correspondence, Mr Campbell said he had 

identified criticisms of the Commissioner and her Office arising from the 

documentary but that these did not constitute complaints. 

 

4. A member asked for clarification on what criteria were used in deciding what 

constituted a complaint rather than a criticism.  Mr. Campbell explained that his 

judgement was based on Home Office guidelines for such assessments as part of 

the complaints process. He said that an allegation that the Commissioner had 

committed an inappropriate act or failed in her duty through an inappropriate 

omission would constitute a complaint whereas negative comments about the 

Commissioner’s general behaviour or the cost of her role and staff would be 

considered criticisms. 

 

5. Another member raised a concern that the difference between a criticism and 

complaint was narrow and nuanced and that as a result, the approach outlined in 

the report may disadvantage some people who believe they are making formal 

complaints and expect an appropriate response and then only receive a general 

purpose thank you letter. 

 

6. Mr. Campbell clarified that his judgements about what constituted a complaint 

were not based on the Commissioner’s choice of response but were entirely 

decided by the content of the correspondence sent to the Commissioner.    He 

stated that the decision of how to respond to correspondence that did not 

constitute a complaint was entirely down to the Commissioner. 

 

 
RESOLVED that the Police and Crime Panel note Mike Campbell’s report. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

KENT AND MEDWAY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel held in the 
Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Tuesday, 9 
September 2014. 
 
PRESENT: Mr P M Hill, OBE (Chairman), Mr Gurvinder Sandher (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr P Clokie, Cllr P Todd, Cllr L Wicks, Cllr R Turpin, Cllr P Fleming, Cllr M Dearden, 
Cllr M Rhodes, Mr R A Latchford, OBE, Mr G Cowan, Cllr K Pugh (Substitute for Mr 
A H T Bowles) and Mr Dan McDonald 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mrs A Barnes, Mr M Stepney, Mr S Nolan, Ms L Steward and 
Ms C Gatward 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mr S Beaumont (Head of Community Safety and Emergency 
Planning) and Mr J Cook (Scrutiny Research Officer) 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 

100. Minutes of the Meeting held on 24th July 2014  
(Item 4) 

 
1. The Chairman raised a matter arising relating to a question from the last meeting 

regarding the applications by the Commissioner to the Police Innovation Fund to 
support purchasing new technological equipment.  The Commissioner stated that 
the matter was still being explored and that a more detailed update with the 
outcome could be provided at a later date. 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on the 24th of July 2014 be 
approved as a correct record and that they be signed by the Chairman. 
 

101. Victim Services  
(Item B1) 

 
1. The Commissioner provided a detailed overview of the Victim Services paper, 

explaining that the various elements were all too important to be summarised. 
 

2. The Commissioner explained that presently, the Ministry of Justice (MoJ) 
commissions a 'one-size-fits all' service from the national charity Victim Support.  
As of October 2014, funding and the responsibility for commissioning victim 
services will be devolved to Police and Crime Commissioners though the current 
contract with Victim Support does not expire until March 31st 2015. 
 

3. In August 2014, the Commissioner decided to utilise the Old Court Building in 
Ashford for the Victims’ Centre, with this decision based on a scoping of the 
options. The concept of a Victims’ Centre had been developed by partner 
agencies through a multi-agency design event which was sponsored by the 
Commissioner. This work was also   importantly, influenced by discussions with 

Agenda Item 8Page 27



 

2 

victims to ensure that their views and experiences could be kept at the heart of 
developments. 
 

4. Some important gaps in the victim support processes that were identified through 
this event included lack of focus on the victim as an individual, no shared 
standards across agencies, poor data sharing, too much emphasis on the 
offender for managing trigger points, no central point of contact for victims and no 
efficient database or management system. 

 
5. This process has been guided by a needs assessment provided by Portsmouth 

University which closely examined victim experiences and current service 
provision. 
 

6. The Commissioner stated that she welcomed the devolution of commissioning 
victim services to PCC’s as it presented a 'once in a lifetime opportunity' for better 
local control and tailoring of services. 
 

7. Some key issues raised by the report included the need for SPOCs as victims did 
not want to have to speak to numerous agencies and people. 
 

8. The Commissioner stressed that it was understood that the needs of the victim 
must always come before the needs of service. 
 

9. The Commissioner explained that the programme for developing the new model is 
taking place in two phases.  Phase one is the transition of control from the MoJ to 
the Commissioner and will include initial commissioning of Victim Support, the 
current contract holder, for a further year starting in April 2015.  This will allow 
continuity of service as well as the opportunity to adapt their existing services to 
more appropriate locally tailored delivery.  A key improvement early on will be the 
co-locating of victim services with Kent Police's own Witness Care unit in the new 
Ashford site. 
 

10. While the existing provider will continue to provide services, this allows enough 
time for all the relevant partner agencies to work together to agree the best 
system for long term victim care in Kent, identifying appropriate specialist services 
for commissioning and to understand the complexities of how the various 
agencies interact and where this may create gaps. 
 

11. The refurbishment of the Ashford site will be funded by through the funds 
provided by the Ministry of Justice. This refurbishment will ensure the building it is 
fit for purpose and in a high quality state for the commencement of service while 
still reducing overall expenses by using existing police estate. 
 

12. The Commissioner explained that while a lot of attention had been paid to getting 
the Kent Victim Centre in Ashford right, it was important to note that this would 
serve as a co-ordination centre and that outreach work and engagement with 
other local services around the county was expected in the future. 

 
13. Phase 2 will focus on bringing all the appropriate Criminal Justice Sector 

Agencies and support providers together to design and agree the best possible 
model.  So far there has been good partnership working and buy in from the 
relevant agencies and Kent's Chief Constable if fully supportive of the project. 

Agenda Item 8 Page 28



 

3 

 
14. The Commissioner commented that this has all been achieved against a 

background of extreme financial challenge which makes the successes so far, 
that much more worth emphasising.  The Commissioner concluded her overview 
by reiterating that all the current evidence indicates that this new model of local 
control of victim services is an excellent opportunity to improve the experiences of 
victims in Kent. 
 

15. The Chairman thanked the Commissioner for her overview, commenting that it 
was positive to hear that consideration had been given to outreach work and 
satellite provision.  He requested clarification on whether these would be 
managed by Victim Support or if the Victim Centre would engage with existing 
support networks such as the District based One Stop Shops which provide multi-
agency support particularly in the area of Domestic Abuse.  The Commissioner 
explained that the Victim Centre, in its capacity as a base for victim support 
services, would signpost and refer appropriate individuals to the most suitable 
service which in many cases could include their local one stop shop. 
 

16. Several Members questioned the Commissioner on the issue of centralisation 
versus local control and that while the benefits of a centralised unit were 
recognised, information sharing and joint best practice, it was stressed that 
victims should not be expected to travel to access these services.  Concerns were 
raised that the Ashford location would be designed to suit the needs of 
professionals rather than victims. 
 

17. The Commissioner challenged these assertions, explaining that the Victim Centre 
would have excellent facilities for those victims able to access them on site but 
would maintain a flexible approach to referring and engaging with victims to more 
local services to minimise travel and disruption, effectively fulfilling the role of a 
co-ordination Centre. 
 

18. Mr Stepney added that the current strategy is designed to result in the best 
possible ‘middle way’ between centralised but high quality services and disparate, 
accessible services that have historically suffered from lack of corporate support.  
This approach would require extensive partnership working and inter-agency co-
operation through operating agreements and formal commitments.  The co-
designing of the service was important as none of the agencies have the power to 
dictate to the others about how to deliver their services but discussion and pre-
implementation agreements are resulting in a best compromise outcome. 
 

19. The Vice-chair suggested that the Victim Centre’s project board could benefit from 
Police and Crime Panel Member involvement and the Commissioner agreed that 
this would be explored. 
 

20. Members sought clarification on the lack of specific mention in the reports of 
supporting victims that were children and young people.  The Commissioner 
responded by explaining that this gap had been identified and was being 
addressed in the new plan. 
 

21. Members stated that they believed this was a good opportunity to examine the 
current contract held with Victim Support and to consider whether it achieves the 
following key outcome; will the first referral result in the victim being advised 

Agenda Item 8Page 29



 

4 

appropriately about which services they can access and that they are directed to 
the most suitable one?  The Commissioner explained that the Portsmouth 
research has provided a map of service provision that will be used both to assist 
with referrals in the first instance but also help identify gaps that will be addressed 
through commissioning further services, potentially with our partner agencies. 
 

22. The Commissioner agreed to share the service map provided by the Portsmouth 
Research with the Members. 
 

23. The Commissioner advised the Panel that she was aware of an increase in 
demand for victim services of the following types; sexual abuse of men, support 
for children and young people and hate crime.  These increase areas have been 
noted and will be addressed as the plan continues to evolve. 
 

24. The Commissioner could give no assurances that the new system would prevent 
all serious issues (references made to the Rotherham Child abuse issue) but 
stated that she was confident that the Victim Centre was a positive piece of work 
that would improve the support for all victims of crime. 

 
RESOLVED that the Panel thank the Commissioner for her report; that the report be 
noted and that the Panel note the Commissioner’s offer to consider Panel 
membership of the Victim Centre Project Board and to share the Portsmouth 
research with the Panel. 
 
 

102. Commissioner's Correspondence  
(Item B2) 

 
1. The Commissioner introduced the paper outlining the level of correspondence 

received and managed by her office.  The Commissioner explained that it was 
important to look beyond the figures and consider the complexities and detailed 
decision-making involved in effectively managing all the different types of 
correspondence received. 
 

2. The Commissioner explained that all correspondence had to be responded to 
effectively; this meant that it was not a simple matter of a response being sent 
back and that a significant amount of case management was involved.  This could 
take the form of making suitable referrals to the appropriate partner agency or 
Kent Police and then either using the response provided to update the member of 
the public, or following up subsequently to confirm that appropriate action has 
been taken. 
 

3. The Commissioner explained that given the emotive and complex nature of the 
criminal justice system, her office regularly deals with irate members of the public, 
some of whom are bringing repeat or vexatious complaints to her attention, which 
have already been addressed appropriately through the accepted protocols.  In 
addition, a number of callers and correspondents experience mental health issues 
which can require careful handling by the officers.  This has prompted her staff to 
undergo further training in effective communication, and also some have been 
specifically trained on understanding mental health conditions.  The 
Commissioner highlighted this as an example of how well her staff has managed 
the complexities of ongoing communication with the public on policing issues. 

Agenda Item 8 Page 30



 

5 

 
4. The Commissioner was positive about the role her office plays in being a conduit 

for information and referrals to appropriate services and partner agencies and 
was confident that her office handled the sizeable and complex correspondence 
well. 
 

5. The Commissioner expressed her gratitude to the public for corresponding with 
her office and to her officers for their exemplary professionalism in dealing with 
the large amount of correspondence and telephone enquiries that required careful 
management and swift action. 
 

6. A Member raised a concern regarding the risk of inappropriately labelling 
correspondents as vexatious due to calling repeatedly.  Laura Steward, OPCC 
Head of Standards and Regulation, explained that the individual was not labelled 
as vexatious or repeat but rather the issue they raised, if appropriate, could be 
deemed to be so.  This was only the case where complaints or issues were 
repeatedly raised after they have been appropriately addressed or were being 
dealt with by another agency and further action by the Commissioner or her office 
would be inappropriate. 
 

7. A discussion took place in which members questioned the accuracy of the initial 
report that claimed that the PCC's office dealt with 9000 pieces of 
correspondence when officer investigation had suggested that 76% of this was 
immediately referred to Kent Police for handling.   
 

8. Firstly the Commissioner and her Chief of Staff explained that, the 9000 figure did 
not include daily email communications as part of normal business but referred 
instead to direct contact from the public and relevant partner agencies relating to 
specific issues requiring action.   
 

9. Secondly, when it was suggested that the Commissioner’s office only dealt with 
24%) of her correspondence, the Commissioner stated that while it was often the 
case that the correspondence related to operational matters and as such had to 
be referred to the Force, the OPCC still had to review and confirm this in every 
case which took up staff time and involved research, and the member of the 
public was always contacted by the Office.  In addition, all referrals were followed 
up with residents by the OPCC to confirm that appropriate action had been taken 
by the Force or other partner agency.  Mr Stepney stressed that while the OPCC 
may not take direct action on all correspondence, significant work was undertaken 
to ensure that any concerns expressed by those communicating with the OPCC 
were appropriately addressed. 
 

10. A Member referenced one of the purposes of Police and Crime Commissioners in 
terms of the need to make policing more democratically accountable, suggesting 
that a good method of improving wider involvement in the management of public 
complaints would be to ensure information is made available that categorises the 
complaints and correspondence received by the Force and the Commissioner’s 
office in a manner that gives a good indication of the key issues and developing 
trends. 
 

Agenda Item 8Page 31



 

6 

11. The Commissioner agreed that having an effective system of categorising and 
managing complaints is vital and assured the Panel that such a system was in 
development.  
 

12. Laura Steward explained that the main type of complaint against the Force was 
‘Other neglect or failure in duty’ in terms of crime investigations or not keeping 
victims updated.  Ms Steward stated that the Force was aware of this trend and 
that action was being taken by the Force to identify root causes and address any 
significant issues. 
 

13. The Commissioner explained that her office discusses police complaints with the 
Independent Police Complaints Commission (IPCC) on a regular basis to ensure 
shared understanding of key trends and issues.  The Commissioner also clarified 
that her office may only refer complaints to the IPCC if they are against the 
Commissioner or the Chief Constable, and meet the relevant criteria.  All other 
police complaints are dealt with internally through the Force’s Professional 
Standards Department or referred to the IPCC by the Force if required. 
 

14. Laura Steward further commented that resident dissatisfaction issues raised with 
the Commissioner’s office are referred to the Force but are followed up thoroughly 
through the OPCC’s case management system. 

 
RESOLVED that the Panel thank the Commissioner for her report and note its 
contents. 
 

103. Future work programme  
(Item D1) 

 
1. The Vice-chair suggested that the Commissioner discuss the planned Ethics 

Committee at a future meeting.  The Commissioner agreed to this. 
 

2. The Chairman suggested that the Commissioner discuss the matter of the Victim 
Centre again next year to review progress.  The Commissioner agreed to this. 

 
RESOLVED that the Panel will receive reports on the Ethics Committee and the 
Victim Centre at future meetings. 
 
 

104. Panel Communications Strategy  
(Item D2) 

 
RESOLVED that the Panel agree the updated communication protocol. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8 Page 32



               
CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 

11 FEBRUARY 2015 
 

DARTFORD AND GRAVESHAM COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP: 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT 2014 
 

 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 To consider the Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety Partnership 

(CSP) annual Strategic Assessment 2014 document (attached at Appendix 
A) as agreed. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
2.1  That the contents of the Partnership Strategic Assessment 2014 be 

considered. 
 

2.2 That the priorities identified in the Partnership’s Strategic Assessment (SA) 
2014 document, subject to any required public consultation, be noted. 

 
2.3  That the proposal to develop a new Community Safety Plan 2015-16 to 

address the priorities identified in the SA 2014 be endorsed and that the 
subsequent Plan be submitted to the next meeting of this Committee.  

 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 
3.1 Under the Committee’s Terms of Reference, and as an Overview function, 

the Committee is required to consider the annual Strategic Assessment in 
connection with the discharge by the Community Safety Partnership, of its 
crime and disorder functions.   

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
4.1   Member review of the annual Dartford and Gravesham CSP Strategic 

Assessment (SA) document, contributes to the Safer Community Objective 
Strategic Aim to create a safer Borough in which to work and live.  

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications None 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment Member comment on the CSP 
proposals as set out in the annual 
Strategic Assessment document 
should help to focus CSP efforts on 
ensuring a safer community for 

Agenda Item 9Page 33



                 
CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 

12 February 2014 
 

  

Dartford residents.  

 
6. Obligation of Confidence 
 

 An obligation of confidence arises as the data contained in this report, while 
not restricted, is considered to be sensitive and the Council is required to treat 
the information as confidential. 

 
    7.    Appendices  
 
 Appendix A – Dartford and Gravesham Strategic Assessment 2014  

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Documents 
consulted 

Date File 
Ref 

Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

Dartford and 
Gravesham CSP 
SA 2013-14; 
CSP Plan 2014-15; 
Performance 
Report June 2014 
 

January 2015  Kath Donald, 
Gravesham CSU. 

Community 
Safety/ 
Strategic 

Obligation of 
Confidence 

 

Agenda Item 9 Page 34



Appendix A 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety  
Strategic Assessment 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
December 2014  

Agenda Item 9Page 35



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 2 
 

Contents 
 

Item Page 

Executive Summary 3 

Demographics – Contextual Backdrop 7 

  Geographical context and general population 7 

  Ethnic profile 7 

  Deprivation 8 

  Unemployment 9 

Total Recorded Crime 10 

Violent Crime 12 

  Total violent crime 12 

  Violence against the person 12 

  Sexual offences 13 

  Robbery 13 

  Domestic Abuse 14 

    Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conferences (MARACs) 
    Domestic abuse incidents and repeat victims 
    Independent Domestic Violence Advisor Service (ISVA) 
    One-Stop Shops 

 
14-18 

  Review of key activities – violent crime 19 

Substance Misuse 20 

  Kent Police recorded drug offences 20 

  West Kent Recovery Service (CRI) 21 

  Hospital admissions 22 

  Young people accessing and engaging with Specialist Treatment Services 23 

  Review of key activities – substance misuse 25 

Acquisitive and Property Crime 26 

  Burglary dwelling and burglary other than dwelling 26 

  Vehicle crime  26 

  Theft and handling (excluding vehicle interference) 27 

  Criminal damage 29 

  Review of key activities – acquisitive and property crime 30 

Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) 31 

  Police recorded incidents of ASB 31 

  Accidental and deliberate fires 32 

  Noise nuisance 33 

  Review of key activities – anti-social behaviour 35 

Reducing Re-offending 36 

  Local adult re-offending 36 

  Integrated Offender Management 38 

  Deter Young Offenders (DYO) 38 

  Troubled Families Programme 39 

  Review of key activities – reducing re-offending 42 

Road Safety 43 

  Road Traffic Collisions and Casualties 43 

  Review of key activities – road safety 45 

Counter Terrorism and Extremism 46 

Data Ranking Tables 48 

Dartford and Gravesham CSP Contact Details 51 

 

 

Agenda Item 9 Page 36



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 3 
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
What is a Strategic Assessment? 
 
The Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment is a report published each 
year as required by the Crime and Disorder Act 1998.  It gathers research, evidence and 
intelligence from Kent-wide and local sources as well as drawing upon the professional expertise of 
those working at a District level. 
 
The Assessment is designed to: 
 

• Provide a clear picture of current community safety issues; 

• Reflect trends and emerging new issues; 

• Identify locations and communities most affected by these issues; 

• Be objective and evidence-led with the aim of presenting the needs of the communities we 
serve across public service organisations. 
 

The main aim of this document is to identify those priorities that will inform a joint strategic action 
plan in order that we can tackle issues in a co-ordinated approach across Dartford and 
Gravesham.  It also acknowledges the broader commissioning landscape following the election of 
the Kent Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) and the findings of this Assessment will be shared 
with both the PCC’s Office and our other statutory partners to identify areas of common ground 
and further opportunities for working in collaboration. 
 
Methodology  
 
Most of the data relating to crime and disorder collated for this Strategic Assessment covers the 
period October 2013-September 2014 unless otherwise stated.  It is Important to note that it is not 
possible to present comparisons with previous years figures due to changes in the definitions of 
several crime categories introduced in 2013 that were intended to provide a clearer and more 
consistent picture of recorded crime.  It should also be noted that there have been significant 
changes in the Home Office Counting Rules for Recorded Crime introduced following an inspection 
by Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabularies (HMIC).  Kent Police has a very high ethical 
standard of crime recording; other Police areas have not yet introduced the same or similar 
standards that may affect comparisons drawn with similar force areas. 
 
In recent years, Kent Police has undertaken a fundamental shift from an approach whereby 
performance management was measured primarily by meeting numerical targets to a victim-
centred approach prioritising resources and activity according to the assessed levels of threat, 
harm and risk to the community. 
 
Crime and ASB data has been used from information published by Kent Police alongside 
information contained within the data sets provided by Kent County Council for the purpose of 
completing this Assessment.  This year’s crime data should be able to provide us with a new 
baseline against which comparisons will be capable of being made in subsequent Assessments.   
 
Wherever possible, data has been analysed at a local Dartford and Gravesham level.  
Comparisons are also drawn between our performance locally to performance county-wide and 
Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety Partnership’s (CSP) position within its Most Similar 
Group (MSG) as recorded by the Home Office iQuanta database, is also highlighted.  CSPs within 
the MSG other than Dartford and Gravesham are: 
 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 37



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 4 
 

Cheshire – Warrington;   Essex – Basildon; 
Devon and Cornwall – Torquay;  Essex – Harlow; 
Essex – Thurrock;    Gloucestershire – Gloucester; 
Greater Manchester – Bolton;  Greater Manchester – Stockport; 
Greater Manchester – Trafford;  Kent – Medway; 
Northamptonshire – Northampton;  Thames Valley – Milton Keynes; 
West Mercia – Redditch;   Wiltshire – Swindon. 
 
The key themes that have emerged from this Assessment have provided an indication of the 
priorities upon which the Partnership should concentrate its efforts over the next financial year.  
However, before reaching any final decisions, the Partnership will seek to consult as widely as 
possible to ensure that we focus on those issues that affect and matter most to our local 
neighbourhoods. 
 
Priorities from the last Strategic Assessment 
 
The priorities identified in last year’s Assessment were: 
 

• Anti-social behaviour; 

• Violent crime including domestic abuse; 

• Substance misuse (alcohol and drug-related crime and ASB); 

• Property crime (domestic burglary and theft offences); 

• Reducing re-offending; 

• Road safety. 
 

These priorities were both closely aligned with those of the PCC as contained with her Police and 
Crime Plan and to those in the Kent County Council Community Safety Agreement.   This 
Assessment considers the current state of play in respect of the above priorities in some detail in 
order that we can take stock of the impact that work carried out has been having in achieving 
improvements and whether there have been any changes in circumstances that may require us to 
revise either our priorities or the approaches that we have been taking in addressing them. 
 

Recommendations 
 
Our Key Priorities for 2015-16 
 
To ensure that an objective approach is taken in assessing which issues should remain or become 
priorities for our CSP in 2015-16, a ‘theme ranking process’ has been utilised.  Each key theme is 
subjected to this process and a score provided for a number of factors as described.  When 
completing the task of ranking the themes, a score has been provided on each of the 6 factors 
using the guidance.  The guidance and rankings can be found on Page 48 of this Assessment. 
 
Our key strategic objectives for the forthcoming year will be to address: 
 

• Violent Crime and Domestic Abuse; 

• Anti-Social Behaviour (incorporating Criminal Damage related to ASB); 

• Acquisitive and Property Crime; 

• Substance Misuse; 

• Reducing Re-offending; 

• Road Safety. 
 
CSP activity delivered to address the above priorities will largely be coordinated through the 
Partnership’s joint, multi-agency working groups that meet on a regular basis and the Chairs of 
which report progress to the CSP Support Group. 
 
 

Agenda Item 9 Page 38



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 5 
 

Emerging Important Themes 
 
Later this year a new statutory responsibility is to be added by the Counter Terrorism and Security 
Bill (Act) which has implications for the individual agencies which form the partnership and for the 
partnership itself under the ‘Prevent’ strategy within the Government’s Counter Terrorism plan, 
‘Contest’ (see page 46 for more information). 
 
This new duty will mean that agencies, in exercising the functions of their organisation, will be 
required to have due regard to the need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism. 
Essentially the bill places increased obligations on agencies to work together to reduce the risks of 
individuals being radicalised or drawn into terrorism by combating the underlying ideologies which 
support terrorism and seeks to improve engagement and awareness with some organisations 
which sit outside of the CSP. 
 
A working group may be required to look at meeting the standards set by the legislation on 
statutory partners to work together to support the objectives of the Government’s Prevent Strategy 
in reducing the risks posed both by violent and non-violent extremism and may need to consider 
arranging or promoting suitable training sessions for staff within partner organisations to which the 
new duty applies. 
 
 
Issues falling within key priorities 
 
Violent Crime 

• Violence occurring in town centres (in both evening and day-time economies) – targeting key 
perpetrator groups and locations; 

• Violent crime that is alcohol-related (taking place in both domestic settings and in town centre 
environments) needs to continue to be prioritised; 

• Continue as far as possible, funded projects e.g. IDVA, ISVA, Sanctuary Scheme; 

• Review current One-Stop Shop services and any opportunities for extending provision; 

• Continue referrals to and holding of MARACs; 

• Continue to identify gaps in service and ways of closing them; 

• Develop stronger links between the Troubled Families Programme’s Family Workers and 
specially trained DA staff. 
 

Substance Misuse 

• Run a campaign to raise awareness of the dangers of the use of Legal Highs; 

• Extend joint working between the Troubled Families Programme’s Family Workers and local 
substance misuse service providers (CRI and KCA) to consider how referrals to these services 
can be increased; 

• CSP partners to have an active role in the CRI-led project to improve multi-agency working in 
dealing with the needs of complex alcohol users currently resistant to accessing support and 
services through the Making Every Adult Matter project (to be piloted in Gravesham in 2015); 

• Continue to deliver outreach work in those geographical locations where either drug and/or 
alcohol misuse is more prevalent; 

• Assess whether there is the need for more tailored work to be completed to ensure that new 
migrant individuals and families settling in our areas are made aware of and have access to 
services. 
 

Acquisitive and Property Crime 

• Target work in key geographical locations to reduce repeat victimisation and provide support 
to vulnerable residents and businesses; 

• Continue to maintain and extend close working and information-sharing between G-Safe, D-
TAC, CCTV and Kent Police and the use of measures such as Exclusion Orders as 
appropriate; 

Agenda Item 9Page 39



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 6 
 

• Carry out joint work with new Kent Police Rural Teams and KCC Wardens to increase 
provision of target hardening advice and raising public awareness in key locations as 
appropriate; 

• Carry out targeted work in geographical locations in which BOTD offences are more prevalent; 

• Establish any links between criminal damage offences (particularly repeat 
locations/offenders/victims) and ASB/other criminal behaviour and identify possible 
interventions; 

• Identify and develop further seasonal partnership crime prevention initiatives and campaigns; 

• Consider how the use of restorative justice can be increased in resolving certain property 
crime offences. 
 

Anti-Social Behaviour 

• Establish authorisations, policies and procedures as necessary to ensure that new powers 
under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 can be readily utilised in 
appropriate cases; 

• Extend joint working between the Troubled Families Programme’s Family Workers and 
relevant partner agencies to ensure that there is regular and effective information-sharing and 
monitoring of interventions; 

• Consider the use of restorative justice practices in appropriate cases of environmental crime 
linked to ASB. 
 

Reducing Re-offending 

• Support the CRI-led initiative to improve multi-agency working in dealing with the needs of 
complex alcohol users often involved in repeat offending (both criminal activity and ASB) 
currently resistant to accessing support and services through the Making Every Adult Matter 
project; 

• Continue to address high levels of repeat offending occurring in respect of certain crime 
categories e.g. domestic abuse; 

• Continue to gather further information to better understand factors influencing offending 
behaviour and to identify practical interventions and support that can help prevent re-
offending; 

• Consider how CSP partner agencies can further contribute to work being delivered through the 
Troubled Families Programme to further reduce levels of re-offending. 
 

Road Safety 

• Continue to identify local road safety ‘hot spots’ and work with partner agencies and local 
residents to address concerns (with a particular focus on areas immediately around schools); 

• Continue to support Speedwatch Schemes and increase the number of volunteers as 
necessary; 

• Support multi-agency initiatives aimed at promoting responsible driving behaviour and raising 
awareness of issues such as driving under the influence, speeding etc. through ‘pre-driver’ 
programmes and preventative work for new drivers. 
 

 

Agenda Item 9 Page 40



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 7 
 

Demographics – Contextual Backdrop 
 
1. Geographical Context and General Population 

 
1.1 Dartford and Gravesham sit on the south bank of the Thames and are at the heart of what 

remains a key area for regeneration. Both Boroughs are well-served by road and rail 
transport links including Ebbsfleet International which provides a high speed rail link 
between London and the Channel Tunnel and a domestic service with a journey time of 
less than 20 minutes to St. Pancras.  Bluewater Shopping Centre, located in Dartford 
attracts an average footfall of 27 million visitors each year and despite the national 
recession Dartford and Gravesham’s town centres remain busy with both their daytime and 
night-time economies continuing to expand and attract investment. 
 

1.2 Mid-2013 Population Estimates indicated that there were 100,600 people living in Dartford – 
the smallest number living in any Kent District, accounting for 6.7% of the County’s total 
population.  In respect of gender, 49.4% of Dartford’s population were male and 50.6% 
were female.  There were 103,800 people living in Gravesham, the second smallest Kent 
District population and representing 6.9% of the total population in the County.  49.3% of 
Gravesham residents were male and 50.7% were female.   

 
1.3 However, in terms of population density (the number of persons per hectare) Dartford had 

the highest density and Gravesham the third highest density seen in Kent Districts – and at 
levels that are significantly greater than the Kent average: 13.8 persons per hectare in 
Dartford and 10.5 persons in Gravesham compared to a Kent District average of 4.2 
persons per hectare. 

 

1.4 Both Boroughs have seen their populations continue to increase.  Dartford’s population 
grew by 1.6% in 2012-13 (the highest increase recorded in any Kent District) whilst 
Gravesham’s population grew by 1.0% (closer to the average growth in Kent of 0.9%).  
Population forecasts suggest that both Boroughs populations will continue to grow although 
the predicted increase in Dartford’s population is significantly greater at 107,500 by 2016 
and rising to 120,500 by 2021.  Gravesham’s predicted increases are much more modest 
with a forecast population of 103,300 by 2016, rising to 105,100 by 2021. 

 
1.5 The mean age of residents in Kent is 40.6 years.  Dartford’s population has the youngest 

mean age of 37.9 years and Gravesham has the second youngest mean age of 38.9 years.   
 
2 Ethnic Profile 
 
2.1 Information relating to ethnicity is taken from the findings of the 2011 Census.  This 

indicated that 87.4% of Dartford’s population described themselves as being of a White 
ethnic background and 12.6% from a BME background.  Within the BME categories, 2.9% 
of people described themselves as African and 2.7% as Indian. 

 
2.2 Gravesham had the most diverse population in the County with 17.2% being recorded by 

the 2011 Census as being from BME categories and 82.8% being recorded as White.  The 
most significant BME category is Indian (7.4%) followed by African (2.2%).   

 
2.3 In recent years both Boroughs have seen an increase in new migrants from EU Accession 

countries and this may in part explain the 3.7% of the population in Dartford and the 4.6% 
of the population in Gravesham who were recorded as ‘White Other’. 

 

Agenda Item 9Page 41



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 8 
 

3. Deprivation 
 
3.1 Information relating to social deprivation is provided by the Indices of Multiple Deprivation 

(IMD) 2010.  There are 283 electoral Wards in the County.  Those ranked in positions 1 to 
57 are classed as being within Kent’s most deprived 20% of Wards and those ranked in 
positions 227 to 283 are classed as being within the least deprived.  The table below 
indicates that Dartford and Gravesham each have 4 Wards that fall within the most 
deprived and 2 and 3 Wards respectively falling within the least deprived.  Neither of our 
two Boroughs have a Ward within the Top 10 most deprived Wards in the County although 
Gravesham does have one Ward, Istead Rise, that falls within the Top 10 least deprived 
Wards in Kent. 

 
3.2 The Wards in Dartford and Gravesham falling within the 20% most deprived Wards in Kent 

are listed in the table below together with their overall positions within the 283 total Wards 
in Kent. 

 
Average IMD scores for Wards in Dartford and Gravesham falling within the 20% 

most deprived and 20% least deprived Wards in Kent 2010 
  

Dartford 

 
Ward name 

 
Average IMD 

Score 

Rank of average 
score in Dartford 
(of 17 Wards) 

Rank of average 
score in Kent (of 
283 Wards) 

Within Kent’s 20% most 
deprived Wards 

   

Littlebrook 28.92 1 31 

Joyce Green 28.29 2 38 

Princes 26.28 3 46 

Swanscombe 24.76 4 52 

Within Kent’s 20% least 
deprived Wards 

   

Longfield, New Barn and 
Southfleet 

 
8.81 

 
16 

 
238 

Heath 6.32 17 270 

 

Gravesham 

 
 
Ward name 

 
Average IMD  

Score 

Rank of average 
score in Gravesham  

(of 18 Wards) 

Rank of average 
score in Kent (of 
283 Wards) 

Within Kent’s 20% most 
deprived Wards 

   

Riverside 30.96 1 23 

Northfleet North 30.94 2 24 

Singlewell 29.74 3 29 

Westcourt 27.83 4 39 

Within Kent’s 20% least 
deprived Wards 

   

Meopham North 7.58 16 254 

Riverview 6.90 17 262 

Istead Rise 4.71 18 278 

 
 

Agenda Item 9 Page 42



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 9 
 

4. Unemployment 
 
4.1 Dartford’s unemployment rate is currently 1.5%.  This is slightly lower than the County 

average of 1.8% and considerably lower than the national average of 2.2%.  In September 
2014 there were 974 unemployed people in Dartford - 6.6% less (69 fewer people) than in 
August 2014 and 34.1% less (505 fewer unemployed people) than in September 2013.   

 

Unemployment rates: Dartford 

 
 

4.2 Unemployment rates vary across the borough.  The lowest unemployment is in Sutton at 
Hone & Hawley Ward where 0.7% of the working age population are unemployed.  The 
highest rate is in Joyce Green Ward where 3.0% of the working age population are 
unemployed. 

 
4.3 The majority of those unemployed are aged between 18-24 years. In Dartford, 18-24 year 

olds account for 26.7% of all of those unemployed (very close to the proportion of 26.5%).  
 
4.4  Gravesham’s unemployment rate is currently 2.3%.  This is higher than the County average 

of 1.8% and very marginally higher than the national average of 2.2%.  In September 2014 
there were 1,490 unemployed people in Gravesham - 1.9% lower (29 fewer people) than 
August 2014 and 29.0% lower (609 fewer unemployed people) than September 2014.  

 
Unemployment rates - Gravesham 

 
 

4.5 Unemployment rates vary across the district.  The lowest unemployment is in Istead Rise 
Ward where 0.5% of the working age population are unemployed.  The highest rate is in 
Riverside Ward where 3.6% of the working age population are unemployed. 

 
4.6 The majority of those unemployed in Gravesham are also in the 18-24 year age group.  In 

Gravesham, this group account for 25.5% of all of those unemployed in the Borough 
(compared to the Kent proportion of 26.5%).   

 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 

Change since previous 

month Change since last year

District Number % Number %

Dartford 974                     1.5% -69 -6.6% -505 -34.1%

Kent 16,162                1.8% -622 -3.7% -7,165 -30.7%

Great Britain 870,863             2.2% -37,028 -4.1% -391,876 -31.0%

Source: NOMIS - Claimant Count

Total 

unemployed as 

at September 

2014

Resident 

based rate %

Change since previous 

month Change since last year

District Number % Number %

Gravesham 1,490                  2.3% -29 -1.9% -609 -29.0%

Kent 16,162                1.8% -622 -3.7% -7,165 -30.7%

Great Britain 870,863             2.2% -37,028 -4.1% -391,876 -31.0%

Source: NOMIS - Claimant Count

Total 

unemployed as 

at September 

2014

Resident 

based rate %

Agenda Item 9Page 43



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 10 
 

Total Recorded Crime 
 
1. Total Recorded Crime in Dartford and Gravesham  
 
1.1 Crime data published by Kent Police is considered below for the 12-month period 1 October 

2013-30 September 2014.  Changes to the Home Office Counting Rules and in definitions 
of a range of crime categories mean that year-to-year comparative analysis would be 
inaccurate.  Therefore, data used is limited to the actual number of crimes recorded during 
the current Assessment period set against the ‘anticipated’ levels formulated by Kent Police 
using 5 years worth of data for each crime type. These figures will provide a baseline 
against which future data will be capable of being compared in future Assessments.  This 
section considers total crime data and is followed by a more detailed analysis of those 
crime categories that have formed our strategic priorities during the year or that are most 
prevalent in our Boroughs. 

 
1.2 In the period October 2013-September 2014, there were 8,318 offences recorded in total in 

Dartford and 7,701 offences recorded in Gravesham.  These figures equate to 82.7 
offences per 1,000 population in Dartford and 74.2 offences per 1,000 population in 
Gravesham compared with a County average rate of 63.3 offences.  Dartford’s was the 
second highest rate in Kent whilst Gravesham’s was the third highest. 

 
Total recorded crime per 1,000 population in Kent October 2013-September 2014 

 

Area No. of offences Per 1,000 pop. 

Ashford 7004 57.5 

Canterbury 9122 58.7 

Dartford 8318 82.7 

Dover 6643 59.1 

Gravesham 7701 74.2 

Maidstone 9410 59.0 

Sevenoaks 5637 48.2 

Shepway 6491 59.6 

Swale 10292 73.9 

Thanet 12440 91.0 

Tonbridge and Malling 5621 45.7 

Tunbridge Wells 4998 43.2 

KCC Districts 93677 62.7 

Medway 18163 67.0 

Kent 111840 63.4 

 
1.3 Most Districts have recorded total crime levels that are higher than those anticipated, as is 

the case for Dartford.  For the period October 2013-September 2014, Dartford’s anticipated 
total crime figure was 8,018 offences – 300 offences lower than the 8,318 offences 
recorded. Of these 300 offences, 299 were victim based crimes and 1 offence fell within the 
crimes against society classification. In Gravesham, the anticipated total crime figure for 
this period was 7,819 offences compared to the actual number recorded of 7,701 offences 
(118 offences less – comprised of 10 victim based crimes and 108 offences falling within 
crimes against society). This would suggest that in terms of overall crime there is a pattern 
of increase in Dartford and one of a small decrease in Gravesham. 

 
1.4 In respect of total crime, comparisons with other CSPs in the Most Similar Group (MSG) 

indicate that in the year ending 30 September 2014, our CSP was in 13th position i.e. the 
level of crime overall was higher than the average experienced by areas with similar 
demographics.  

Agenda Item 9 Page 44



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 11 
 

  
Total recorded crime in Dartford October 2013-September 2014 

 

Category Volume Anticipated Difference Per 1,000 
pop. 

Victim based crime 7795 7496 +299 77.5 

Violent crime 2109 1855 +254 21.0 

 Violence against the person 1890 1651 +239 18.8 

 Sexual offences 136 120 +16 1.3 

 Robbery 83 83 0 0.8 

Burglary dwelling 401 420 -19 4.0 

Burglary other than dwelling 613 611 +2 6.0 

Vehicle crime 803 923 -120 8.0 

 Theft from motor vehicle 572 665 -93 5.7 

 Theft of motor vehicle  231 256 -25 2.3 

Vehicle interference 85 76 +9 0.8 

Theft and handling exc. VI 2587 2480 +107 25.7 

 Shoplifting 1195 1095 +100 11.9 

 Theft of pedal cycle 76 88 -12 0.7 

 Other theft 1316 1297 +19 13.0 

Criminal damage 1197 1111 +86 11.9 

Crimes against society 523 522 +1 5.2 

Drug offences 204 208 -4 2.0 

Possession of weapons 13 22 -9 0.1 

Public order offences 212 202 +10 2.1 

Other crimes 94 89 +5 0.9 

Total crime 8318 8018 +300 82.7 

 
Total recorded crime in Gravesham October 2013-September 2014 

 

Category Volume Anticipated Difference Per 1,000 
pop. 

Victim based crime 7180 7190 -10 69.2 

Violent crime 2278 2082 +196 21.9 

 Violence against the person 2032 1817 +215 19.6 

 Sexual offences 147 158 -11 1.4 

 Robbery 99 108 -9 0.9 

Burglary dwelling 478 561 -83 4.6 

Burglary other than dwelling 618 726 -108 5.9 

Vehicle crime 695 706 -11 6.7 

 Theft from motor vehicle 505 499 +6 4.9 

 Theft of motor vehicle  190 204 -14 1.8 

Vehicle interference 93 63 +30 0.9 

Theft and handling exc. VI 1703 1701 +2 16.4 

 Shoplifting 509 523 -14 4.9 

 Theft of pedal cycle 97 76 +21 0.9 

 Other theft 1097 1102 -5 10.6 

Criminal damage 1315 1326 -11 12.7 

Crimes against society 521 629 -108 5.0 

Drug offences 185 248 -63 1.8 

Possession of weapons 23 32 -9 0.2 

Public order offences 212 237 -25 2.0 

Other crimes 101 114 -13 1.0 

Total crime 7701 7819 -118 74.2 

 

Agenda Item 9Page 45



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 12 
 

Violent Crime 
 
1. Total Violent Crime 
 
1.1 ‘Violent crime’ covers a wide range of offences including murder, manslaughter, GBH, ABH 

and other injury, assaults with or without injury, sexual offences and robbery.  In the year 
ending 30 September 2014, both Dartford and Gravesham recorded significantly more offences 
of violent crime than the anticipated levels.  In Dartford, there were 2,109 violent offences 
recorded, 254 offences higher than predicted whilst in Gravesham, 2,278 violent offences were 
recorded – 196 offences greater than expected.  This is not unique to our Boroughs – every 
Kent District and Medway also recorded higher (and in some cases significantly higher) levels 
than the anticipated rates.  This disparity may have been partly the result of the ‘recounting’ of 
violent offences that has taken place during the year but nonetheless leaves violent crime 
accounting for over a fifth and almost a third of total crime recorded in Districts across the 
County and Medway. 

 
1.2 Figures indicate that levels of violent crime per 1,000 population in Dartford and Gravesham 

are higher than the Kent average: 21 offences and 21.9 offences respectively compared to a 
County average of 17.9 offences.    

 
Violent crime October 2013-September 2014 

 

 
Area 

 
Volume 

 
Anticipated 

 
Difference 

As prop. 
of total 
crime 

 
Per 1,000 
population 

Ashford 1858 1764 +94 26.5% 15.3 

Canterbury 2483 2281 +202 27.2% 16.0 

Dartford 2109 1855 +254 25.3% 21.0 

Dover 2161 2043 +118 32.5% 19.2 

Gravesham 2278 2082 +196 29.6% 21.9 

Maidstone 2612 2489 +123 27.7% 16.4 

Sevenoaks 1213 1048 +165 21.5% 10.4 

Shepway 2110 1883 +227 32.5% 19.4 

Swale 2657 2344 +313 25.8% 19.0 

Thanet 3750 3450 +300 30.1% 27.4 

Tonbridge and Malling 1376 1302 +74 24.5% 11.1 

Tunbridge Wells 1395 1324 +71 27.9% 12.0 

KCC Districts 26002 23869 +2133 27.7% 17.4 

Medway 5642 5125 +517 31.0% 20.8 

Kent 31644 28996 +2648 28.3% 17.9 

 
2. Violence against the person 
 
2.1 The majority of violent offences occurring in both Dartford and Gravesham in the 12 months 

ending 30 September 2014 were of violence against the person.  There were 1,890 such 
offences recorded in Dartford (239 offences higher than anticipated) and equating to 18.8 
offences per 1,000.  Gravesham recorded 2,032 offences of violence against the person (215 
offences higher than the number anticipated) and translating to 19.6 offences per 1,000 
population.  These rates are higher than the County average rate of 16.0 offences.  It should 
be noted however, that many incidents of violence against the person will involve minor 
assaults and that serious violent crime remains rare in both our Boroughs.   

 
2.2 In terms of MSG ranking for violence against the person, our CSP is in 14th position at the end 

of September 2014, the rate of offences being the second highest within the MSG.   

Agenda Item 9 Page 46



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 13 
 

Pattern of Recorded Violence Against the Person – Dartford 
 

 
Oct 
13 

Nov 
13 

Dec 
13 

Jan 
14 

Feb 
14 

Mar 
14 

Apr 
14 

May 
14 

Jun 
14 

Jul 
14 

Aug 
14 

Sep 
14 

Volume 142 128 138 156 129 189 129 188 180 183 169 159 

 

Anticipated 

141 130 127 132 122 128 138 149 154 143 137 150 

+ 1 -2 + 11 + 24 + 7 + 61 -9 + 39 + 26 + 40 + 32 + 9 

 

 
  

Pattern of Recorded Violence Against the Person – Gravesham 
 

 
Oct 

13 

Nov 

13 

Dec 

13 

Jan 

14 

Feb 

14 

Mar 

14 

Apr 

14 

May 

14 

Jun 

14 

Jul 

14 

Aug 

14 

Sep 

14 

Volume 164 160 157 160 139 193 162 192 174 183 186 162 

 
Anticipated 

159 143 148 140 138 161 157 138 162 159 160 152 

+ 5 + 17 + 9 + 20 + 1 + 32 + 5 + 54 + 12 + 24 + 26 + 10 

 

 
 

2.3 Council Wards in which violence against the person offences happened most frequently 
were: Town, Newtown and Swanscombe Wards in Dartford and Riverside, Central, Pelham 
and Singlewell Wards in Gravesham. 

 
3. Sexual offences 
 
3.1 There were 136 sexual offences recorded in Dartford in the year ending 30 September 

2014 - 16 offences higher than the anticipated number.  However, sexual offences are still 
rare and amount to 1.3 offences per 1,000 population – very slightly less than the Kent-wide 
average rate of 1.4 offences per 1,000 population.  The picture was similar in Gravesham 
with a total of 147 offences recorded (11 offences less than the anticipated figure) and 
equating to 1.4 offences per 1,000 population.   

 
3.2 In terms of our CSP ranking within our MSG for sexual offences, we were in 8th position and 

so also very close to the average for areas with similar demographics to our own. 
 
4. Robbery 
 
4.1 Recorded offences of robbery suggest that such incidents occur rarely in both Dartford and 

Gravesham.  In the year ending 30 September 2014, 83 robberies were recorded in 
Dartford (exactly the anticipated figure) and translating to 0.8 offences per 1,000 population.  

Agenda Item 9Page 47



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 14 
 

In Gravesham, 99 robberies were recorded (9 offences less than anticipated) and equating 
to 0.9 offences per 1,000 population.  In real terms figures are very low although they are 
fractionally higher than the Kent-wide average rate of 0.6 offences per 1,000 population 
(Gravesham’s volume being the second highest in KCC Districts) and this is echoed with 
our MSG ranking for robbery offences – 12th position and slightly higher than the average.   

 
5. Domestic Abuse 
 
5.1 Domestic abuse has been a local, County-wide and national priority for many years and 

work to address this issue has continued to develop through Multi-Agency Risk Assessment 
Conferences (MARACs) to deal with the most serious of cases, the commissioning of an 
Independent Domestic Violence Advisor Service (IDVA) and a close-working relationship 
between service providers at a very local level through the North Kent Domestic Abuse 
Forum.  Domestic abuse has and continues to account for a considerable proportion of 
violent crime as well as being a fundamental feature of other criminal offences. Its 
prioritisation is not just in response to the serious nature of the behaviour involved but is 
also necessitated by the volume of incidents that are being recorded – made all the more 
significant as this is one crime category that has historically suffered from considerable 
under-reporting. 

 
5.2 Changes were made to the definition of ‘domestic violence’ with effect from April 2013 with 

the category itself being re-titled to ‘domestic violence and abuse’ and broadened to: 
 

'Any incident or pattern of incidents of controlling, coercive or threatening behaviour, 
violence or abuse between those aged 16 or over who are or have been intimate partners 
or family members, regardless of gender or sexuality. This can encompass but is not limited 
to the following types of abuse:  
 
• psychological 
• physical 
• sexual 
• financial  
• emotional  
 
'Controlling behaviour is: a range of acts designed to make a person subordinate and/or 
dependent by isolating them from sources of support, exploiting their resources and 
capacities for personal gain, depriving them of the means needed for independence, 
resistance and escape and regulating their everyday behaviour.  
 
‘Coercive behaviour’ is: an act or a pattern of acts of assault, threats, humiliation and 
intimidation or other abuse that is used to harm, punish, or frighten their victim.'  
 

5.3 The above means that it would be inaccurate to compare figures relating to domestic abuse 
incidents for the current Assessment period with previous years.  However, one of the 
indicators of how we well we are doing in providing assistance to victims of domestic abuse 
is not the number of incidents but the percentage of repeat victims – in this respect 
comparative analysis would not be affected and can be considered. 

 
5.4 Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conferences (MARACs) 
 
5.4.1 MARACs are meetings where information about high-risk domestic abuse victims (those at 

risk of murder or serious harm) is shared between local agencies.  By bringing all agencies 
together at a MARAC, a risk-focused, co-ordinated safety plan can be drawn together to 
support the victim.  MARACs now cover all persons aged 16 years and over.  In the data 
available for this Assessment, it should be noted that victims and perpetrators aged 
under 18 have only been recorded since October 2013 within the statistics provided. 

 

Agenda Item 9 Page 48



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 15 
 

5.4.2 In the 12 months ending 30 September 2014, there were 141 Dartford cases handled by a 
MARAC compared to 93 in the previous 12 months – an increase of 51.6%.  The increase 
in Gravesham was less (but the starting point significantly higher) from 145 to 170 cases or 
an increase of 17.2%.  These figures compare to a Kent-wide increase of 30.0%. 

 
5.4.3 The percentage of Dartford cases that concerned repeat victims fell from 28% to 26% 

during these periods whilst in Gravesham, the percentage of repeat victims involved in 
cases coming to a MARAC increased significantly from 26% to 37%.  The Kent-wide 
average rate of repeat MARAC victims in the year ending 30 September 2014 was 26.6%. 

 
MARAC Cases 
Measure 
 

Dartford Gravesham Kent 

Oct 12-
Sept 13 

Oct 13-
Sept 14 

Oct 12-
Sept 13 

Oct 13-
Sept 14 

Oct 12-
Sept 13 

Oct 13-
Sept 14 

Total no. of cases 93 141 145 170 1409 1833 

No. of repeat cases 26 37 38 63 310 488 

Repeat cases % 28% 26% 26% 37% 22.0% 26.6% 

No. of children in 
households 

 
91 

 
175 

 
148 

 
189 

 
1917 

 
2420 

No. of BME cases 13 26 24 44 126 198 

No. of LGBT cases 0 0 0 0 7 5 

No. of cases with 
registered disabilities 

 
1 

 
0 

 
2 

 
1 

 
26 

 
33 

No. of male victims 4 2 4 5 35 46 

Victims under 18* NA 2 NA 2 NA 25 

Perpetrators under 18* NA 0 NA 0 NA 14 

 
5.4.4 What is of interest is that in the year ending 30 September 2014, 18.4% of Dartford MARAC 

cases and 25.8% of Gravesham cases, involved victims from a BME background.  
Proportionally these figures are higher than we would expect taking the overall BME 
populations of our Boroughs into account (12.6% in Dartford and 17.2% in Gravesham). 

 
5.5 Recorded incidents of domestic abuse and percentage of repeat victims 
 
5.5.1 There were 1,671 incidents of domestic abuse in Dartford recorded by Kent Police in the 

year ending 30 September 2014 and 2,037 incidents recorded in Gravesham.  In terms of 
incidents per 1,000 population this translates to a rate of 16.6 offences in Dartford and 19.6 
offences in Gravesham compared to a Kent-wide average rate of 15.4 offences.  

 
Domestic Abuse Incidents – Percentage of Repeat Victims 

 
 
Area 

Domestic abuse incidents 
Oct 2013-Sept 2014 

 
% repeat victims 

 
Volume 

Per 1,000 
pop. 

Oct 2012- 
Sept 2013 

Oct 2013- 
Sept 2014 

Ashford 1672 13.7 28.1% 28.6% 

Canterbury 1814 11.7 29.0% 29.5% 

Dartford 1671 16.6 27.4% 25.8% 

Dover 1720 15.3 26.9% 30.0% 

Gravesham 2037 19.6 30.8% 27.3% 

Maidstone 2042 12.8 27.4% 28.3% 

Sevenoaks 1041 8.9 25.8% 24.3% 

Shepway 1665 15.3 28.5% 30.1% 

Swale 2256 16.2 27.9% 28.2% 

Thanet 3350 24.5 28.9% 29.5% 

Tonbridge and Malling 1336 10.9 29.4% 28.7% 

Tunbridge Wells 1120 9.7 26.8% 31.7% 

KCC Districts 21724 14.5 28.0% 28.5% 

Medway 5397 19.9 29.0% 29.7% 

Kent 27121 15.4 28.4% 28.1% 

Agenda Item 9Page 49



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 16 
 

5.5.2  Both Dartford and Gravesham have seen improvements in the percentage of repeat victims 
involved in the overall number of domestic incidents recorded and in the year ending 30 
September 2014, both areas repeat victimisation rates were below the County average: 
25.8% in Dartford and 27.3% in Gravesham compared to a Kent-wide rate of 28.1%.  For 
Gravesham, this is in contrast to the pattern of repeat victimisation in MARAC cases 
discussed above. 

 
5.6 Independent Domestic Violence Advisor Service (IDVA) 
 
5.6.1 Co-commissioned dedicated IDVA services continue to be delivered in Dartford and 

Gravesham through Choices (formerly North Kent Women’s Aid (NKWA)) who have 
provided refuge accommodation for victims from both our Boroughs for many years.  In 
addition, they run a helpline, provide outreach services, co-ordinate and facilitate the 
Freedom Programme.  NKWA also deliver a programme to encourage healthy relationships 
to schools and youth groups as well as work commissioned by Kent County Council to 
address the impact of domestic abuse on children and young people. 

 
5.6.2 Information on the number of clients and impact of IDVA services has been provided for this 

Assessment for the period April-September 2014 with comparisons being made to the 
same period in the previous year.  In both Dartford and Gravesham, the IDVA is achieving 
positive results and increases have been seen in the number of referrals being handled.  
There were 108 new Dartford referrals in the 6 months ending 30 September 2014 – an 
increase of 218% compared to the same period the previous year – whilst Gravesham 
received 96 new referrals – an increase of 50%.  The number of children referred has also 
increased by 287% in Dartford referrals and 53% in Gravesham referrals. 

 
5.6.3  94% of all Dartford MARAC cases and 100% of all Gravesham MARAC cases referred to 

IDVA services during April-September 2014 received support (of those who did not, 
alternative support will have been offered or services were refused).  Engagement rates for 
both Boroughs i.e. where a client has agreed or been recommended a Safety Plan, exceed 
the benchmark of 80% with the rate being 87% for Dartford clients and 91% for Gravesham 
clients compared to a Kent and Medway average rate of engagement of 86%. 

 
Dartford IDVA Service – Key Information April-September 2014 

 

 
Overall caseload 

 
Apr-Jun  
2014 

 
Jun-Sept 
2014 

 
Progressive 

total 

Movement on 
same period 
last year 

New referrals 58 50 108 218% 

No. of children on 
referrals 

 
53 

 
67 

 
120 

 
287% 

Unable to contact/criteria 
not met 

 
2 

 
5 

 
7 

 

Total clients 56 45 101  

No. of contacted clients 
closed with outcomes 

 
9 

 
30 

 
39 

 

No/% of contacted 
clients engaged 

 
8 (89%) 

 
26 (87%) 

 
34 (87%) 

 

% of clients contacted 
within: 
24 hours 
48 hours 
> 48 hours 

 
 

27% 
73% 
0% 

 
 

94% 
6% 
0% 

 
 

79% 
21% 
0% 

 

Current client caseload 84 99   

 
5.6.4 The services monitor clients economic independence and stability and there seems to have 

been a decline in the economic and housing stability of Dartford clients which may be linked 
to the national economic climate, welfare reform and/or changes to housing allocation 

Agenda Item 9 Page 50



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 17 
 

policies. This can lead to clients experiencing problems in maximising their income and/or 
achieving a successful outcome in moving home.  This does not appear to be mirrored in 
Gravesham and these are, of course, matters that are particularly difficult for the service to 
impact. 

 
Gravesham IDVA Service – Key Information April-September 2014 

 

 
Overall caseload 

 
Apr-Jun  
2014 

 
Jun-Sept 
2014 

 
Progressive 

total 

Movement on 
same period 
last year 

New referrals 42 54 96 50% 

No. of children on 
referrals 

 
46 

 
70 

 
116 

 
53% 

Unable to contact/criteria 
not met 

 
2 

 
1 

 
3 

 

Total clients 40 53 93  

No. of contacted clients 
closed with outcomes 

 
16 

 
22 

 
38 

 

No/% of contacted 
clients engaged 

 
14 (88%) 

 
20 (91%) 

 
34 (89%) 

 

% of clients contacted 
within: 
24 hours 
48 hours 
> 48 hours 

 
 

28% 
67% 
6% 

 
 

100% 
0 
0 

  

Current client caseload 74 105   

 
5.6.5 Other key performance measures employed by the IDVA services include the level of risk 

felt by clients and how much safer they feel once they have accessed the services. 
Between April-September 2014, 89% of Dartford clients and 83% of Gravesham clients 
stated that they felt they were at significantly or moderately less risk and 75% of Dartford 
clients and 100% of Gravesham clients stated that they now felt either much or somewhat 
safer than they did before accessing the services. 

 
5.7 One-Stop Shops  
 
5.7.1 Domestic Abuse One Stop Shops offer free advice, information and support from a range of 

agencies under one roof to help victims of domestic abuse.  Typically each one stop shop is 
open for 2-3 hours, once a week; no appointment is necessary, members of the public 
seeking assistance can just turn up to speak to the professionals in attendance.  
Information regarding the take-up of One-Stop Shop services has been provided by the 
Kent and Medway Domestic Abuse Strategy Group for the 12 month period June 2013-July 
2014 and previous 12 month periods. 

 
5.7.2 Visitor numbers do reduce in some areas around Bank Holiday and other holiday times 

(people may not have as many opportunities to visit due to other commitments/priorities 
rather than lack of need).  In Dartford, the busiest month was March 2014 with 10 visitors 
whilst the quietest month was December 2013 with 2 visitors.  In Gravesham, the busiest 
month was May 2014 with 12 visitors and the quietest month was October 2013 with only 1 
visitor. 

 
5.7.3 Commonly visitors reside in the same Local Authority area as the One-Stop Shop they visit.  

However, of all the areas offering the service, Dartford has the highest proportion of visitors 
(16%) that attend who come from outside the Borough.  In Gravesham, only 6% of visitors 
are not also residents of the Borough.  Whilst 18% of visitors to the Dartford One-Stop Shop 
attended 2 or more times, in Gravesham only 5% did so and whilst Dartford visitors were 
most often seeking legal advice, assistance was being sought across a broad range of 
issues by Gravesham visitors. Legal advice may be more complicated and necessitate 

Agenda Item 9Page 51



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 18 
 

more than one visit whereas other simpler queries may be able to be dealt with in one visit 
alone i.e. several visits does not equate to less effective handling – as satisfaction levels 
discussed below at 5.7.6. demonstrate. 

 
Number of visitors to One-Stop Shop Services 

 
 
Location 

 
No of visitors 

2010/11 

 
No of visitors 

2011/12 

 
No of visitors 

2012/13 

 
No of visitors 

2013/14 

% +/- 
against 
previous 
year 

Ashford 75 169 239 316 + 32% 

Canterbury 169 262 214 232 + 8% 

Dartford 60 46 52 74 + 42% 

Dover 102 54 83 81 - 2% 

Gravesham 52 31 52 64 + 23% 

Herne Bay* n/a n/a 43 125 + 191% 

Maidstone  n/a 20 65 97 + 49% 

Medway  128 146 147 287 + 95% 

Shepway 143 120 91 165 + 81% 

Swale 107 123 140 146 + 4% 

Swanley ** 6 12 16 25 + 56% 

Thanet 49 71 117 215 + 84% 

Tonbridge*** n/a n/a n/a 8 n/a 

Total 891 1054 1259 1835 + 46% 

*   Herne Bay opened in November 2012. 
** Swanley opened twice a month until January 2013; weekly service thereafter. 
*** Tonbridge opened in April 2014. 

 
5.7.4 In terms of gender, the vast majority of visitors in both Boroughs were female: 97% in 

Dartford and 98% in Gravesham in the 12 months ending 31 July 2014.  In Dartford, 72% of 
visitors described themselves as ‘White British’ and 28% as ‘Black/Black British’ compared 
to 64% of Gravesham describing themselves as ‘White British’ and 36% as ‘Asian/Asian 
British’.  Gravesham visitors had the highest levels of ethnic diversity, followed by Dartford, 
of all One-Stop Shops in the County.  The majority of visitors overall were between the 
ages of 26-39 years old. 

 
5.7.5 Visitors are asked to provide details of the number of children in their household.  In 

Dartford, there were a total of 94 children and in Gravesham there were 83 children in the 
households of visitors during the 12 months ending 31 July 2014.   

 
5.7.6 Visitors attending these services are also asked to report how helpful they felt the 

information provided had been.  It is very positive that Dartford and Gravesham both 
achieved 100% in terms of satisfaction with the services received – which was not the case 
in all areas.  Only 2 other One-Stop Shops (Swanley and Tonbridge) achieved 100% and 
the average across all the One-Stop Shops was 85.8%. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9 Page 52



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 19 
 

 
Review of key activities – violent crime and domestic abuse 
 

Key work carried out by Dartford and Gravesham CSUs and the CSP to address violent 
crime and domestic abuse in 2014 

• Continued delivery of the Sanctuary Scheme in conjunction with KF&RS to assist victims 
of domestic abuse in remaining in their own homes by improving security; 

• Both Dartford and Gravesham Councils have provided financial support to help meet the 
costs of providing the Independent Domestic Violence Advisor Service; 

• An Awareness Campaign was delivered during the period of the World Cup to encourage 
the reporting to and take-up of domestic abuse services. 

• A cross-borough Domestic Abuse Awareness Event was organised by Dartford Council 
and held at the Princes Park Football Ground in Dartford in March 2014; 

• Both Dartford and Gravesham continue to offer One-Stop Shop sessions for victims of 
domestic abuse with feedback suggesting the services provided are very helpful; 

• Awareness and understanding of domestic abuse services and the challenges facing them 
has been raised with Council members by domestic abuse being chosen as a topic for the 
Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee (Gravesham); 

• Delivery of the Positive Relationship Programme by Choices (formerly NKWA) to children 
and young people aged 5-15 years affected by domestic abuse; 

• Provision of CSU funding to the Community Domestic Abuse Programme to allow 4 CRI 
clients with alcohol dependency issues to take part in the programme; 

• Love Me, Love Me Not Programme established by Choices (formerly NKWA) for 11-16 
year olds (particularly for those who have been victims of or witnessed domestic abuse) 
through mixed sessions and 1-1 mentoring; 

• Provision of financial support by both Dartford and Gravesham CSUs towards the 
Independent Sexual Violence Advisor post based at Family Matters, Gravesend; 

• Financial contribution towards and the promotion of the services provided by the Hate 
Crime Reporting Line; 

• Targeted work to encourage those with alcohol dependency issues who then either 
become involved in violence as perpetrators or are vulnerable to violence as victims, into 
treatment services. 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 53



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 20 
 

Substance Misuse 
 
1. Provision of key data 
 
1.1 In addition to Kent Police recorded data relating to drug offences, this Assessment includes 

information provided by the West Kent Recovery Service (CRI) to enable a better 
understanding of types of substance misuse experienced by clients and some of their 
circumstances.  Further information has also been obtained from the Kent and Medway 
Public Health Observatory to demonstrate the numbers of people in our areas having 
recourse to health services due to substance misuse-related problems.  

 
2. Kent Police recorded drug offences 
 
2.1 ‘Drug offences’ includes both offences of drug trafficking and of drug possession.  There 

were 204 drug offences recorded in Dartford in the year ending 30 September 2014, 4 
offences fewer than the 208 figure anticipated.  Gravesham recorded 185 offences and 63 
offences fewer than the 248 offences anticipated.  The rates of drug offences per 1,000 
population in each Borough are also low: 2.0 offences in Dartford and 1.8 offences in 
Gravesham compared to an average rate of 2 offences per 1,000 population County-wide. 

 
Pattern of Drug Offences – Dartford 

 

 
Oct 

13 

Nov 

13 

Dec 

13 

Jan 

14 

Feb 

14 

Mar 

14 

Apr 

14 

May 

14 

Jun 

14 

Jul 

14 

Aug 

14 

Sep 

14 

Volume 25 27 18 11 21 15 12 13 10 19 16 17 

 
Anticipated 

25 16 15 16 16 27 13 15 14 16 19 16 

+ 0 + 11 + 3 -5 + 5 -12 -1 -2 -4 + 3 -3 + 1 

 

 
 

Pattern of Drug Offences – Gravesham 
 

 
Oct 
13 

Nov 
13 

Dec 
13 

Jan 
14 

Feb 
14 

Mar 
14 

Apr 
14 

May 
14 

Jun 
14 

Jul 
14 

Aug 
14 

Sep 
14 

Volume 19 25 29 11 10 13 8 15 11 25 8 11 

 
Anticipated 

21 17 23 17 20 36 15 16 18 20 24 21 

-2 + 8 + 6 -6 -10 -23 -7 -1 -7 + 5 -16 -10 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 9 Page 54



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 21 
 

2.2 Our CSP’s position within our MSG also reflects that recorded offences have fallen to well 
below the MSG average and in September 2014 we were in 3rd position. 

 
3. West Kent Recovery Service (CRI) Client Data 
 
3.1 This year’s Assessment has the benefit of data provided by the commissioned West Kent 

Recovery Service (CRI) that provides a useful insight into the range of substance misuse 
problems experienced by Dartford and Gravesham clients seeking help and their 
circumstances.  CRI’s main premises are based in Gravesend whilst a satellite service 
operates from the YMCA in Dartford and to increase take up of services, CRI also cover the 
cost of travel expenses for Dartford clients prepared to travel to Gravesham for services 
where these are not available locally.  Figures relate to the client base as at September 
2014.   

 
3.2 In September 2014, CRI had 226 Gravesham clients and 90 Dartford clients in structured 

treatment.  The vast majority of clients from each area classified themselves as ‘White 
British’: 84 or 93.3% of Dartford clients and 174 or 76.9% of Gravesham clients.  In 
Gravesham, the second most common ethnic group in treatment were ‘Asian/Asian British 
– Indian’ (18 clients or 7.9%).  In terms of nationality, 11 Gravesham clients or 4.8% were 
recorded as Slovakian.  The vast majority of clients from each area were male.  Of Dartford 
clients, 62 were male and 28 female (68.9% and 31.1% respectively) and of the Gravesham 
clients, 162 were male and 64 female (71.7% and 28.3% respectively). 

 
3.3 As indicated in the table below in respect of age, the largest proportion of Gravesham 

clients was slightly younger than the largest proportion from Dartford.  Gravesham also had 
a proportionally much larger client base aged 18-24 years.  

 
Age range of CRI Dartford and Gravesham clients – September 2014 

 

 
Age range 

Dartford Gravesham 

No. % No. % 

18-24 2 2.2% 16 7.1% 

25-34 27 30.0% 65 28.8% 

35-44 27 30.0% 78 34.5% 

45-54 31 34.5% 48 21.2% 

55-64 2 2.2% 15 6.6% 

65 and over 1 1.1% 4 1.8% 

Total 90 100.0% 226 100.0% 

 
3.4 Clients are asked to provide some personal details about their marital status, any 

disabilities, whether they are in employment and whether they have had any experience of 
or concerns regarding domestic abuse (either as a victim or perpetrator/potential 
perpetrator, currently or in the past).  The largest proportion of both Dartford and 
Gravesham clients stated that they had ‘Never Married’: 48 or 53.3% of Dartford clients and 
96 or 42.4% of Gravesham clients.  8 Dartford clients or 10.0% were divorced and 7 or 
7.8% were separated/separated but still legally married.  For Gravesham, 96 or 42.4% of 
clients had never married and 15 or 6.6% were separated/separated but still legally 
married. 

 
3.5 The vast majority of clients from both Boroughs recorded that they did not have a disability: 

58 or 64.4% of Dartford clients and 172 or 76.1% of Gravesham clients.  Of those clients 
who did record having a disability, the most common was ‘Mental Health Difficulties’: 7 or 
7.8% of Dartford clients and 11 or 4.9% of Gravesham clients.  Approximately a quarter of 
Dartford clients (23 or 25.6%), were in regular employment compared to almost a fifth of 
Gravesham clients (43 or 19.0%).  A much larger proportion of Gravesham clients were 

Agenda Item 9Page 55



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 22 
 

unemployed: 104 clients or 46.0% of all clients compared to 24 Dartford clients or 28.8%.  
Other clients included those who were retired, economically inactive or students. 

 
3.6 Of Dartford clients, 19 or 21.0% had previously or were currently affected by domestic 

abuse compared to 37 or 16.4% of Gravesham clients. 
 
3.7 The table below provides details of the primary substance being misused by clients.  It is 

important to note however, that this information provides details of usage of the current 
client base as at September 2014 and that recovery programmes for the misuse of heroin 
and alcohol will generally be lengthier i.e. clients will remain ‘on the books’ for longer than 
others being treated with less complex addictions who may have completed their recovery 
and not appear in these figures. 

 
Primary substance use of clients in treatment September 2014 

 

 
Substance 

Dartford Gravesham 

No. % No. % 

Alcohol unspecified 41 45.6% 91 40.3% 

Amphetamines unspecified 2 2.2% - - 

Cannabis herbal - - 1 0.4% 

Cannabis unspecified 3 3.3% 7 3.1% 

Cocaine Freebase (Crack) - - 1 0.4% 

Cocaine Hydrochloride - - 2 0.9% 

Cocaine unspecified 4 4.4% 5 2.2% 

Codeine unspecified - - 2 0.9% 

Diazepam - - 1 0.4% 

Dihydrocodeine - - 1 0.4% 

Heroin illicit 37 41.1% 98 43.4% 

Opiates unspecified 1 1.1% 5 2.2% 

Other opiates 1 1.1% 7 3.1% 

Other prescribed drug - - 1 0.4% 

Other/No details 1 1.1% 3 1.3% 

Tramadol hydrochloride - - 1 0.4% 

 
4. Hospital Admissions linked to Substance Misuse 
 
4.1 Data within this section refers to hospital admissions and NOT to A & E attendances.  Local 

Authority Ward references relate to the patients’ place of residence. 
 
4.2 Hospital Admissions – Psychoactive Substance Use 
  
4.2.1 Data presented relates to admissions due to mental and behavioural disorders due to 

psychoactive substance use including alcohol, opioids, cannabinoids, sedatives, hypnotics, 
cocaine, hallucinogens, volatile substances and other psychoactive substances. 

 
Admissions – Psychoactive Substance Use – Dartford residents 

1 September 2013-31 August 2014 
 

No. of admissions 363 admissions 

No. of Individuals admitted 257 individuals 

Wards with highest  no. of admissions Stone (42), Swanscombe (41), Joyce Green 
(37) 

Gender Predominantly male 

Predominant age range(s) 40-44 years 

 
 

Agenda Item 9 Page 56



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 23 
 

Admissions – Psychoactive Substance Use – Gravesham residents 
1 September 2013-31 August 2014 

 

No. of admissions 442 admissions 

No. of Individuals admitted 310 individuals 

Wards with highest  no. of admissions Pelham (69), Northfleet North (60), Riverside 
(59) 

Gender Predominantly male 

Predominant age range(s) 45-49 years 

 
4.3 Hospital Admissions – Alcohol 
 
4.3.1 Data presented relates to hospital admissions where patients have shown evidence of 

alcohol involvement by blood alcohol levels or levels of intoxication or the toxic effects of 
alcohol. 

 
Admissions – Alcohol – Dartford residents 

1 September 2013-31 August 2014 
 

No. of admissions 50 admissions 

No. of Individuals admitted 46 individuals 

Wards with highest  no. of admissions Newtown (8), Princes (7), Swanscombe (5) 

Gender Fairly balanced between males and females 

Predominant age range(s) 50-54 years 

 
Admissions – Alcohol– Gravesham residents 

1 September 2013-31 August 2014 
 

No. of admissions 54 admissions 

No. of Individuals admitted 49 individuals 

Wards with highest  no. of admissions Riverside (9), Westcourt (8), Singlewell (6) 

Gender Predominantly male 

Predominant age range(s) 45-49 years (but no consistent pattern) 

 
5. Young People Accessing and Engaging with Specialist Substance Misuse Treatment 

Services 
 
5.1 Substance misuse treatment services for young people in Dartford and Gravesham are 

provided by KCA Young Persons’ Service (KCA YPS), who are commissioned by Kent 
Public Health to deliver early intervention and specialist treatment to young people aged 10-
17 years who have problems with drugs and/or alcohol.  The Kent Youth Drug Intervention 
Scheme (KYDIS) was introduced to provide an alternate means of dealing with those young 
people under the age of 18 who are found in possession of Class B or C drugs only and 
with no long-term history of drug abuse by diverting them away from entering the criminal 
justice system.   

 
5.2 KCA YPS are family focussed and offer support to parents and carers who are concerned 

about a young person’s drug or alcohol use.  The service also offers assistance to young 
people who are worried about another person’s drug or alcohol use and KCA YPS have 
been supported by Adfam (national charity providing help to families affected by drug 
and/or alcohol misuse) to develop family interventions. 

 
5.3 In 2013-14, there were 14 Dartford young people starting new treatment journeys – double 

the number in the previous year (although the latter seems to have been unusually low as 
there were 15 in 2011-12).  This compares to 13 young people in Gravesham in 2013-14 – 
a slight reduction from the 18 young people seen in 2011-12 and 18 seen in 2012-13. 

Agenda Item 9Page 57



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 24 
 

 
 

KCA Young people client base – Dartford and Gravesham 
 

 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 

Dartford    

No. of young people starting new 
treatment journey 

 
15 

 
7 

 
14 

Total no. young people engaged with 
substance misuse treatment services 

 
31 

 
22 

 
18 

Treatment exits:-    

   Planned 92% 50% 42% 

   Unplanned 81% 50% 42% 

Gravesham    

No. of young people starting new 
treatment journey 

 
18 

 
17 

 
13 

Total no. young people engaged with 
substance misuse treatment services 

 
44 

 
46 

 
32 

Treatment exits:-    

   Planned 78% 82% 100% 

   Unplanned 22% 18% 0% 

 
 

Agenda Item 9 Page 58



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 25 
 

Review of key activities – substance misuse 
 

Key work carried out by Dartford and Gravesham CSUs and the CSP to address substance 
misuse in 2014 

• Delivery of Police Operations targeted at dismantling organised crime groups involved in 
drug-related activity e.g. identification and destruction of cannabis cultivation crops in 
Gravesend (street value of £200,000); 

• Joint work between Police and Council Officers carrying out checks on the sale of Legal 
Highs to ensure that sales are only being made to over 18s and that products are 
legitimate; 

• Range of activities delivered in support of Alcohol Action Week including late night 
inspections carried out in Dartford as part of Operation Iron Horse and 
educational/preventative work to encourage responsible drinking behaviours; 

• Continuing to work with licensed premises in both Dartford and Gravesend town centres to 
achieve standards that meet the criteria for the Safer Socialising Award with several new 
premises having been granted the Award; 

• Launching of a Reducing the Strength Campaign in Gravesend to address the 
irresponsible selling of high volume alcohol; 

• Targeted outreach work delivered by CRI to address problems caused by a small group of 
persistent street drinkers; 

• Successful submission of application to the Home Office for Gravesham to become one of 
20 Local Alcohol Action Areas across the country which has resulted in a multi-agency 
delivery group being formed that receives support from Home Office advisors.  Particular 
attention is being given to alcohol-related ASB and developing the evening and night-time 
economy whilst still positively impacting levels of crime and disorder; 

• Continued to deliver Grabbacab in Dartford and provide taxi marshals at key times of the 
year in Gravesend to encourage the safe and swift dispersal of people away from town 
centres late at night and to reduce the opportunity for alcohol-related crime and disorder to 
occur (particularly on key days and during seasonal festivities); 

• Using G-Safe and D-TAC Exclusion Orders for those individuals repeatedly involved 
alcohol or drug-related crime from member premises; 

• Enforcement of Alcohol Control Zone restrictions; 

• Delivered outreach work with KCC Youth Workers and The Gr@nd to engage with young 
people involved in ASB and raising awareness of the potential harm of underage drinking; 

• Test purchasing operations run in our Boroughs by KCC Trading Standards to help tackle 
underage drinking; 

• Commencement of a Kent Community Alcohol Partnership (KCAP) initiative in the 
Northfleet South area of Gravesham. 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 59



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 26 
 

 

Acquisitive and Property Crime 
 
1. Burglary dwelling 
 
1.1 Both Dartford and Gravesham recorded fewer burglary dwelling offences in the year ending 

30 September 2014 than predicted.  In Dartford, there were 401 burglary dwelling offences 
(19 offences fewer than anticipated) whilst in Gravesham there were 478 offences recorded 
(83 offences fewer than anticipated).  This is in line with the average pattern seen across 
the County of falling levels of domestic burglary.   

 
1.2 The 2011 Census statistics suggest that there were 40,081 households in Dartford and 

40,431 households in Gravesham at that time.  Using these figures, burglary dwelling 
offences translate to 10 offences per 1,000 households in Dartford and 11.8 offences per 
1,000 households in Gravesham during the 12 months considered.  To put these figures 
into context, it is useful to consider that they equate to approximately 7 domestic burglaries 
per week in Dartford and 9 such offences per week in Gravesham. 
 

1.3 Dartford and Gravesham CSP ranked in 10th position within our MSG with respect to 
burglary dwelling offences in the year ending 30 September 2014, slightly above the 
average. 

 
1.4 Council Wards in which burglary dwelling offences were most common were: in Dartford, 

Longfield, New Barn and Southfleet and Wilmington Wards (some of the Borough’s most 
affluent Wards) and in Gravesham, Singlewell, Central and Pelham Wards (Wards in which 
there are pockets of significant deprivation). 

 
2. Burglary other than dwelling (BOTD) 
 
2.1 BOTD offences include breaks into garden sheds, garages and other outbuildings.  In the 

year ending 30 September 2014, Dartford recorded 613 BOTD offences – very close to the 
611 offences anticipated.  Whilst Gravesham recorded a similar number (618 offences) this 
was markedly below the 726 offences anticipated (108 offences fewer).   

 
2.2 Figures equate to very similar rates in each Borough per 1,000 population: in Dartford there 

were 6.0 offences and in Gravesham there were 5.9 offences.  However, these figures are 
higher than the average Kent-wide rate of BOTD offences of 4.4 offences per 1,000 
population and within our MSG our CSP ranked in 15th place in the year ending 30 
September 2014, suggesting that this form of acquisitive crime is more prevalent in our 
area and that we will need to consider how we might increase our joint efforts to address it. 

 
2.3 Council Wards in which BOTD offences were more prevalent were: Swanscombe, Town 

and Littlebrook Wards in Dartford and in Gravesham, Riverside, Northfleet South and 
Northfleet North Wards.  In both Boroughs, these Wards are amongst those with higher 
than average levels of deprivation. 

 
3. Vehicle crime 
 
3.1 Vehicle crime has historically been higher in Dartford than in other Kent Districts including 

neighbouring Gravesham.  However, in the year ending 30 September 2014, Dartford has 
consistently recorded levels of vehicle crime that were lower than anticipated every month. 
A total of 803 vehicle crimes were recorded against an anticipated level of 923 offences 
(120 offences fewer) and equating to 8.0 offences per 1,000 population.  Of the 803 
offences, 572 were offences of thefts from motor vehicles and 231 were thefts of motor 

Agenda Item 9 Page 60



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 27 
 

vehicles.  Whilst the rate of vehicle crime per 1,000 population remains higher than the 
Kent-wide average rate of 5.3 offences, figures suggest a downward trend. 

 
3.2 Gravesham recorded a total of 695 offences of vehicle crime during this 12-month period, 

only slightly below the anticipated figure of 706 offences (11 offences fewer).  Of the total, 
505 offences were of thefts from motor vehicles and 190 were thefts from motor vehicles.  
The rate per 1,000 population for total vehicle crime is closer to the Kent-wide average, 
standing at 6.7 offences. 

 
3.3 For the 12-month period ending 30 September 2014, our CSP ranked in 11th position for 

rates of vehicle crime within our MSG – slightly higher than the average. 
 
3.4 Council Wards experiencing a greater number of thefts from motor vehicles in Dartford 

were: Stone, Swanscombe and Town Wards whilst in Gravesham key Wards were 
Northfleet South, Northfleet North and Woodlands Wards. 

 
3.5 Council Wards in which thefts of motor vehicles were more common in Dartford were 

Stone, Princes and Greenhithe Wards and in Gravesham, Singlewell, Northfleet North and 
Northfleet South Wards. 

 
4. Theft and handling excluding vehicle interference 
 
4.1 Anecdotal information received by our CSUs and the CSP several years ago forecast a rise 

in most forms of acquisitive crime and in all categories of theft as a consequence of the 
economic climate and in anticipation of a continuing period of recession.  Concerted efforts 
have been made locally through a range of activities including police enforcement, greater 
collaborative working with businesses and retailers, targeted initiatives in key locations ad 
with known offenders and a continuing programme to raise public awareness of steps 
individuals can take to protect themselves from the risk of theft.  It is important to note 
that North Kent has particular features that mean some differentiation should be 
drawn with other Kent Districts.  Our rail and transport links to south London do 
make us a more attractive and accessible target for cross-border criminals and the 
presence of Bluewater Shopping Centre means that the number of shoplifting 
offences recorded in the Dartford area are considerably inflated. 

 
Theft and Handling offences exc. Vehicle Interference 

October 2013-September 2014 
 

 
Area 

 
Volume 

 
Anticipated 

 
Difference 

As prop. 
of total 
crime 

 
Per 1,000 
population 

Ashford 2130 1983 +147 30.4% 17.5 

Canterbury 2915 2657 +258 31.9% 18.8 

Dartford* (refer pg.28) 2587 2480 +107 31.1% 25.7 

Dover 1517 1492 +25 22.8% 13.5 

Gravesham 1703 1701 +2 22.1% 16.4 

Maidstone 2728 2628 +100 29.0% 17.1 

Sevenoaks 1264 1306 -42 22.4% 10.8 

Shepway 1675 1741 -66 25.8% 15.4 

Swale 2528 2370 +158 24.6% 18.1 

Thanet 3250 3115 +135 26.1% 23.7 

Tonbridge and Malling 1375 1427 -52 24.5% 11.2 

Tunbridge Wells 1408 1551 -143 28.2% 12.2 

KCC Districts 25080 24448 +632 26.8% 16.8 

Medway 4524 4428 +96 24.9% 16.7 

Kent 29604 28877 +727 26.5% 16.8 

Agenda Item 9Page 61



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 28 
 

 
4.2 In the 12 months ending 30 September 2014, there were 2,587 theft and handling offences 

recorded in Dartford, 107 offences higher than the anticipated figure.  This figure equates to 
25.7 offences per 1,000 population – the highest recorded by Kent Districts and Medway 
and accounting for almost a third (31.1%) of all crime recorded in the Borough during this 
time. 

   
*As mentioned earlier, the impact of Bluewater on Dartford’s level of theft and 
handling offences has to be taken into consideration.  The removal of offences 
occurring within the Bluewater Complex would bring the total of these offences in 
Dartford down significantly and leave theft and handling offences accounting for 
approximately 22-23% of total crime and giving a rate per 1,000 population of 
approximately 18-19 offences – much more in line with the Kent average. 

 
4.3 A total of 1,703 theft and handling offences were recorded in Gravesham during the same 

period – almost exactly the same as the anticipated number of offences of 1,701 offences.  
Theft offences accounted for over a fifth of all crime recorded in the Borough (22.1%) but 
the rate of these offences per 1,000 population has continued to be on a par with the Kent 
average at 16.4 offences compared to the County average of 16.8 offences. 

 
Pattern of recorded Theft and Handling Offences – Dartford 

 

 
Oct 
13 

Nov 
13 

Dec 
13 

Jan 
14 

Feb 
14 

Mar 
14 

Apr 
14 

May 
14 

Jun 
14 

Jul 
14 

Aug 
14 

Sep 
14 

Volume 209 204 206 230 228 234 208 205 216 202 243 202 

 
Anticipate

d 

197 219 205 208 203 214 221 207 189 215 206 196 

+ 12 -15 + 1 + 22 + 25 + 20 -13 -2 + 27 -13 + 37 + 6 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Pattern of recorded Theft and Handling Offences – Gravesham 

 

 
Oct 
13 

Nov 
13 

Dec 
13 

Jan 
14 

Feb 
14 

Mar 
14 

Apr 
14 

May 
14 

Jun 
14 

Jul 
14 

Aug 
14 

Sep 
14 

Volume 117 122 116 130 165 114 148 146 158 170 151 166 

 
Anticipate

d 

140 127 121 134 129 143 156 152 156 155 148 140 

-23 -5 -5 -4 + 36 -29 -8 -6 + 2 + 15 + 3 + 26 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9 Page 62



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 29 
 

4.4 Shoplifting offences account for a significant proportion of the total number of theft and 
handling offences recorded in each Borough (although as discussed, Dartford’s situation is 
exceptional, with the bulk of shoplifting offences having taken place in the Bluewater 
Complex).  There were 1,195 offences recorded in Dartford (100 offences higher than the 
anticipated figure) and 509 offences recorded in Gravesham (14 offences less than 
anticipated).  To demonstrate the impact of Bluewater, it should be noted that the number of 
shoplifting offences in Dartford account for nearly 11% of all shoplifting across the County 
(including Medway).   

 
4.5 As with theft and handling offences overall, if the number occurring in Bluewater were 

subtracted from Dartford’s figures, Dartford’s level of shoplifting would be very similar to 
that of Gravesham.  Gravesham’s rate of shoplifting offences per 1,000 population was 4.9 
offences – lower than the County-average of 6.3 offences. 

 
4.6 Some areas within our MSG do have large shopping centres similar to Bluewater (but not 

necessarily with the same footfall or geographical accessibility) and in the 12 months 
ending 30 September 2014, our CSP was in 12th position i.e. our rate of shoplifting per 
1,000 population within the MSG was higher than average. 

 
5. Criminal damage 
 
5.1 Whilst criminal damage has not been a headline priority for our CSP for several years, 

monitoring of this crime category is important because of its close links with anti-social 
behaviour and because it continues to record a high volume of offences in each Borough.  
There were 1,197 offences of criminal damage recorded in Dartford in the year ending 30 
September 2014 – 86 offences higher than the anticipated level.  Despite recording 11 
offences fewer than anticipated, Gravesham recorded a higher 1,315 offences. 

 
5.2 Criminal damage offences accounted for 14.4% of total crime recorded in Dartford and for 

17.0% of all crime recorded in Gravesham.  Criminal damage offences per 1,000 population 
are also higher in each of our Boroughs than the Kent-average rate: 11.9 offences per 
1,000 population in Dartford and 12.7 offences in Gravesham compared to a County 
average of 10.3 offences.  This is also echoed by our position within our MSG in respect of 
criminal damage offences: in the year ending 30 September 2014 we ranked in 14th 
position, our rate therefore being significantly higher than the average. 

 
5.3 Council Wards in which criminal damage offences occurred more often were: in Dartford, 

Town, Swanscombe and Newtown Wards and in Gravesham, Riverside (particularly more 
prevalent), Pelham and Northfleet North Wards. 

 
5.4 The volume of criminal damage offences occurring in each of our Boroughs, the financial 

impact that they have on organisations, environments and communities and the close links 
with ASB, suggest that this is a crime category worthy of some more detailed attention in 
2015-16.   

 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 63



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 30 
 

Review of key activities – acquisitive and property crime 
 

Key work carried out by Dartford and Gravesham CSUs and the CSP to address acquisitive 
and property crime in 2014 

• Delivery of seasonal initiatives raising awareness and providing advice to the public on 
steps to take to reduce the risk of burglary, motor vehicle crime and theft e.g. Christmas 
Safety Shop, Safer Summer Campaigns; 

• Improving the links between Police, CCTV Operators and both G-Safe and D-TAC 
members particularly in addressing retail theft.  Both Town Centre Schemes have 
achieved Distinctions from the Business Crime Partnership Accreditation body for the 
professionalism and efficiency in the running of the Schemes. 

• Use of G-Safe and D-TAC Exclusion Orders to deter persistent shoplifters from entering 
member premises and ensuring that there is good communication between both our 
Schemes and with other Schemes in the county to tackle cross-border offending; 

• Joint work with KCC Wardens and Trading Standards to engage with residents in areas 
where issues such as bogus callers and distraction burglary are more prevalent; 

• Through input into the Integrated Offender Management process, work with prolific 
offenders (for whom acquisitive crimes such as shoplifting and burglary are frequently the 
crime of choice); 

• Making full use of both permanent and rapid deployment cameras in areas where 
acquisitive crime is most prevalent; 

• Use of public events e.g. Tenants’ Conferences, Over 50’s events, as an opportunity to 
disseminate information and advice regarding home and property security; 

• Running of property marking events e.g. bike marking at key times of the year such as 
pre- and post-Christmas. 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 9 Page 64



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 31 
 

Anti-Social Behaviour  
 
1. Police recorded incidents of Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) 
 
1.1 The definition of anti-social behaviour (ASB) was revised within the National Standards for 

Incident Reporting (NSIR) in 2011 but was not subject to any further amendment as part of 
the reclassification of certain crime categories in 2013.  Therefore, it is possible for a 
comparative analysis to be carried out of incidents recorded between 1 October 2013-30 
September 2014 and the previous 12-month period. 

 
1.2 In the year ending 30 September 2014, Kent Police recorded 2,949 ASB incidents in 

Dartford compared to 2,895 incidents the previous year – an increase of 1.9%.  However, 
whilst this increase is small, it runs counter to the general trend seen across the County of 
falling levels of ASB: Dartford and Thanet were the only 2 areas to record a rise.  Despite 
the increase, figures equate to a rate of 29.3 ASB incidents per 1,000 population in Dartford 
– very close to the Kent-wide average rate of 28.2 incidents. 

 
Police recorded incidents of ASB  

1 October 2012-30 September 2013 and 1 October 2013-30 September 2014 
 

 
Area 

Oct 2012- 
Sept 2013 

Oct 2013- 
Sept 2014 

 
% +/- 

Per 1,000 
population 

Ashford 3191 1850 -42.0% 15.2 

Canterbury 4755 4353 -8.4% 28.0 

Dartford 2895 2949 1.9% 29.3 

Dover 4002 3700 -7.5% 32.9 

Gravesham 3807 3616 -5.0% 34.8 

Maidstone 4026 3679 -8.6% 23.1 

Sevenoaks 2297 2141 -6.8% 18.3 

Shepway 3795 3163 -16.6% 29.0 

Swale 4303 4088 -5.0% 29.4 

Thanet 5988 6160 2.9% 45.0 

Tonbridge and Malling 2598 2533 -2.5% 20.6 

Tunbridge Wells 2534 2302 -9.1% 19.9 

KCC Districts 44191 40534 -8.3% 27.1 

Medway 10065 9250 -8.1% 34.1 

Kent 54256 49784 -8.2% 28.2 

 
1.3 3,616 ASB incidents were recorded in Gravesham in the 12 months ending 30 September 

2014, a decrease of 5.0% compared to the 3,807 incidents recorded in the previous year.  
With a rate of 34.8 ASB incidents per 1,000 population, Gravesham’s rate of offences was 
the second highest recorded in any District or Medway.   

 
1.4 Key Council Wards in which ASB is most prevalent are: in Dartford, Town, Swanscombe, 

Joyce Green and Stone Wards and in Gravesham, Riverside, Pelham, Central and 
Northfleet North Wards. 

 
1.5 Undoubtedly ASB will need to continue to be a strategic priority across CSPs.  Not only are 

figures high, cases coming to the attention of CSUs are often involve high-risk, vulnerable 
victims and those engaging in the ASB themselves often have complex needs of their own 
that can only be effectively addressed by considerable joint working across many partner 
agencies before a change in behaviour can be achieved and sustained. 

 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 65



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 32 
 

2. Accidental and Deliberate Fires – Kent Fire & Rescue Service (KF&RS) 
 
2.1. Overall fire activity has decreased significantly in both Dartford and Gravesham where 

reductions in the total number of fires have been greater than those seen on average 
across the County.  In the year ending 30 September 2014, there were 189 fires in total 
recorded by KF&RS in Dartford constituting a fall of almost a quarter (23.5%) against 247 
total fires recorded in the Borough in the previous 12 months.  Gravesham also recorded a 
reduction of almost a fifth (18.8%) from 297 to 241 total fires.   

 
Total fires recorded by KF&RS 

 

 
Area 

Oct 2012-Sept 
2013 

Oct 2013-Sept 
2014 

 
% +/- 

Dartford 247 189 -23.5% 

Gravesham 297 241 -18.8% 

KCC Districts 3388 2917 -13.9% 

Kent 4002 3456 -13.6% 

 
2.2 Council Wards with the highest number of total fires in the latter 12 months were: in 

Dartford, Swanscombe (29 fires), Stone (20 fires) and Greenhithe (19 fires) and in 
Gravesham, Riverside (72 fires), Singlewell (21 fires) and Central (20 fires).  Riverside was 
the Council Ward with the highest number of total fires in the County. 

 
2.3 Accidental fires 
2.3.1 Numerically the level of accidental fires in Dartford and Gravesham in the year ending 30 

September 2014 was similar but whilst Dartford saw a decrease of 20.0% from 120 to 96 
accidental fires, Gravesham saw an increase of 15.9% from 88 to 102 accidental fires.  The 
trend County-wide is one of reductions with the Kent-wide average reduction in accidental 
fires being 10.1%. 

Total fires recorded by KF&RS 
 

 
Area 

Oct 2012-Sept 
2013 

Oct 2013-Sept 
2014 

 
% +/- 

Dartford 120 96 -20.0% 

Gravesham 88 102 15.9% 

KCC Districts 1962 1746 -11.0% 

Kent 2243 2015 -10.1% 

 
2.3.2 Council Wards in which accidental fires were more prevalent were: in Dartford, Stone (15 

fires), Bean and Dareth (11 fires) and Swanscombe (11 fires) and in Gravesham, Riverside 
(12 fires), Singlewell (11 fires), Northfleet North (10 fires) and Central (10 fires). 

 
2.4 Deliberate fires 
2.4.1 Both Boroughs have seen considerable reductions in deliberate fires.  In Dartford, they fell 

by 26.8% from 127 to 93 fires and in Gravesham by 33.5% from 209 to 139 fires. 
 

Total fires recorded by KF&RS 
1 October 2012-30 September 2013 and 1 October 2013-30 September 2014 

 

 
Area 

Oct 2012-Sept 
2013 

Oct 2013-Sept 
2014 

 
% +/- 

Dartford 127 93 -26.8% 

Gravesham 209 139 -33.5% 

KCC Districts 1426 1171 -17.9% 

Kent 1759 1441 -18.0% 

Agenda Item 9 Page 66



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 33 
 

2.4.2 Council Wards in Dartford where deliberate fires were most common were: Swanscombe 
(18 fires), Greenhithe (13 fires) and Joyce Green (11 fires).  In Gravesham, Riverside Ward 
alone accounted for 60 deliberate fires followed by Westcourt (11 fires), Central (10 fires) 
and Singlewell (10 fires). 

 
3. Noise Nuisance 
 
3.1 Both Dartford and Gravesham Councils monitor the number of noise complaints in their 

Boroughs through their Environmental Services Departments.  Monitored data is sent 
(together with other information) to the Chartered Institute of Environmental Health 
annually.  This data is then provided to Central Government in order that trends can be 
highlighted, gaps in service provision identified, the success of policy initiatives at national 
and local level measured and funding and other resources justified. 

 
3.2 There were 658 noise complaints received in Dartford in the year ending 30 September 

2014, a reduction of 6.9% from 707 complaints received in the previous 12 months.  By far 
the greatest number of complaints concerned loud music – 176 complaints or over a 
quarter of the total number of complaints handled.  The second highest number of 
complaints concerned ‘barking dogs’ – 123 complaints in the last year – although the 
number of complaints in this category (as is the case for those concerning loud music) have 
fallen. 

 
Noise nuisance complaints by category 

 
 
Noise 
category 

Dartford Gravesham 

Yr ending 
Sept 2013 

Yr ending 
Sept 2014 

 
% +/- 

Yr ending 
Sept 2013 

Yr ending 
Sept 2014 

 
% +/- 

Alarm –
intermittent 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0.0% 

 
5 

 
9 

 
80.0% 

Alarm 30 34 13.3% 9 20 122.2% 

Barking dog 142 123 -13.4% 113 99 -12.4% 

Bells 3 1 -66.6% 0 0 0.0% 

Boats 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 

DIY 16 18 12.5% 11 18 63.6% 

Fireworks 2 - -100.0% 1 1 0.0% 

Loud music 191 176 -7.8% 168 144 -14.3% 

Low frequency 2 - -100% 9 3 -66.6% 

Machinery 65 57 -12.3% 29 21 -27.6% 

Other 69 68 -1.4% 42 41 -2.4% 

Other animals 12 10 -16.6% 7 5 -28.6% 

Party 36 48 33.3% 39 38 -2.6% 

People 78 61 -21.8% 75 93 24.0% 

Plant (constr.) 31 26 -16.1% 6 12 100.0% 

PA systems 4 4 0.0% 0 2 n/a 

Shooting 1 3 200.0% 0 3 n/a 

Street noise 7 11 57.1% 10 13 30.0% 

TV/radio 10 7 -30.0% 7 5 -28.6% 

Unspecified 5 6 20.0% 0 0 0.0% 

Vehicle alarms 0 0 0% 3 1 -66.6% 

Vehicle repairs 3 5 66.6% 1 0 -100.0% 

Total 707 658 -6.9% 535 528 -1.3% 

 
3.3 There were 528 noise complaints received in Gravesham in the year ending 30 September 

2014, a small reduction of 1.3% from 535 complaints received in the previous year.  Like 
Dartford, the greatest number of complaints concerned loud music – 144 complaints – 
representing 27.3% of total noise complaints handled.  Other categories generating the 
higher numbers of complaints related to: ‘barking dogs’ (99 complaints or 18.7% of the 
total) and ‘people’ (93 complaints or 17.6% of the total). 

Agenda Item 9Page 67



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 34 
 

 
3.4 Whilst some categories of noise complaints seem to have seen quite substantial 

percentage increases (e.g. complaints relating to alarms in Gravesham), in reality, numbers 
are very small indeed and not indicative of major problems. 

 
3.5 One of the key factors influencing noise complaints, particularly those concerning music or 

related to people being noisy, is the weather: in warmer weather more windows are open 
allowing noise from music to carry and in certain residential areas, people will tend to 
gather and socialise immediately outside their properties with conversational noise 
becoming much more audible in neighbouring properties.  This is supported by the fact that 
July and August were the two months during which the greatest number of complaints was 
received in Gravesham in both of the two years considered. 

 
 

Agenda Item 9 Page 68



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 35 
 

Review of key activities – anti-social behaviour  
 

Key work carried out by Dartford and Gravesham CSUs and the CSP to address anti-social 
behaviour in 2014 

• Coordination of interventions and activity to work with individuals engaging in ASB through 
local multi-agency ASB Groups and also through CSU Briefing meetings; 

• Effective use of enforcement tools and successful action taken against those persistently 
involved in ASB e.g. Acceptable Behaviour Agreements (ABAs) and use of the new 
powers introduced by the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014;  

• Effective use of rapid deployment cameras in each Borough to deter ASB, provide 
reassurance to local neighbourhoods and capture evidence of ASB or criminal behaviour; 

• Delivering extensive programmes of work with Kent Probation’s Community Payback 
(subsequently Kent, Surrey and Sussex Community Rehabilitation Company) Teams to 
tackle some of the consequences of ASB such as fly-tipping, littering and environmental 
damage; 

• Working with local communities to encourage volunteering to help ‘clean-up’ certain 
locations that have been subjected to ASB, promote local ownership and pride in 
neighbourhoods; 

• Educational work with children and young people through the ‘My Place Matters’ Project to 
raise awareness of the impact of environmental crime and ASB; 

• Using assessments to ensure that repeat victims of ASB who are considered to be ‘high 
risk’ are given the best assistance possible from all partner agencies who can provide 
support; 

• Site visits/environmental audits carried out by Housing staff to identify any ASB-related 
environmental damage/issues in order that they can be addressed swiftly and avoid 
problems escalating; 

• Enforcement officers providing advice or issuing Fixed Penalty Notices in respect of 
breaches of Community Protection Notices (CPNs), Public Space Protection Orders 
(PSPOs), littering and dog fouling as appropriate; 

• Multi-agency Task & Finish Group was established in Gravesham this year to deliver 
‘Project Denton’ to address high level of complaints relating to a range of issues caused 
by irresponsible horse ownership including damage and risks to safety; 

• Multi-agency ‘Street RATs’ Project set up by Dartford CSU; detached Youth Workers from 
KCC working alongside Kent Police officers to deal with low level ASB and nuisance with 
the aim of directing young people into more appropriate areas or activities where there 
have been complaints of ‘teenagers hanging around’. 

 

Agenda Item 9Page 69



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 36 
 

Reducing Re-offending 

 
1. Overview 
 
1.1 Reducing re-offending is concerned with cutting crime by stopping and/or changing the 

behaviour of known offenders.  Whilst repeat offenders are small numerically, they are often 
responsible for a disproportionate number of crimes committed within our two Boroughs, 
causing significant damage to local communities and quality of life.  The challenge lies in 
ensuring that services deliver a balance between enforcement activities necessary to 
protect the public and providing appropriate support to offenders to assist them in steering 
clear of criminality. 

 
1.2 Following changes to the delivery of probation services nationally, as of June 2014, Kent 

Probation re-organised into 2 separate organisations: Kent, Surrey and Sussex Community 
Rehabilitation Company (KSS CRC) and the National Probation Service (NPS).  Data 
provided for the purpose of this Assessment relates to the period when Kent Probation was 
in existence therefore, there is no separation between NPS and CRC data.  Details 
provided by the Ministry of Justice are also for our CSP area i.e. Dartford and Gravesham 
combined. 

 
2. Local Adult Re-offending for Dartford and Gravesham 
 
2.1 Re-offending figures below include Community Orders, Suspended Sentence Orders, and 

Post-Release Licences for the calendar year 2013.  For a total cohort of 1,576 adult 
offenders, the rate of re-offending in Dartford and Gravesham was slightly higher than the 
predicted rate of 8.03%. Despite this, our rate of re-offending has continued to improve for 
several years from 8.90% in the year ending 31 December 2011, to 8.59% in December 
2012 and to the current level of 8.44%.  The majority of other areas across Kent have seen 
a similar pattern. 

 
Local adult re-offending rates 
1 January-31 December 2013 

 

 
 
Area/CSP 

 
Total 

offenders in 
cohort 

 
Predicted 
re-offending 

rate  

 
Actual re-
offending 

rate  

% difference 
between 

predicted  & 
actual rates 

Ashford 827 8.39% 8.59% 2.37% 

Canterbury 1081 9.62% 9.53% -0.97% 

Dartford and Gravesham 1576 8.03% 8.44% 5.16% 

Dover 937 9.00% 9.39% 4.33% 

Maidstone 1555 7.86% 7.97% 1.40% 

Medway 2918 8.52% 10.21% 19.90% 

Sevenoaks 471 7.56% 7.43% -1.66% 

Shepway 999 8.29% 7.21% -13.09% 

Swale 1373 7.95% 8.16% 2.57% 

Thanet 1702 9.12% 9.99% 9.52% 

Tonbridge and Malling 672 7.89% 9.52% 20.70% 

Tunbridge Wells 651 7.67% 10.29% 34.21% 

Unknown 747 9.23% 11.65% 26.12% 

KCC Districts 12591 8.43% 8.94% 6.10% 

Kent 15509 8.45% 9.18% 8.72% 

 
 

Agenda Item 9 Page 70



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 37 
 

2.2 Figures suggest that re-offending is most common amongst those offenders aged 18-20 
years (re-offending rate of 15.50%) and 21-24 years (re-offending rate of 14.45%).  
However, whilst the actual re-offending rate in the youngest age group is better than the 
predicted rate, for those aged 21-24 years the rate is quite a lot higher. 

 
2.3 In respect of gender and re-offending, both males and females had rates of re-offending 

that were slightly higher than those predicted: an actual rate of 7.88% for males compared 
to a predicted rate of 7.48% and 8.50% against 8.09% respectively for females. 

 
3. Caseload Overview of Offenders 
 
3.1 Kent Probation data has been provided for overall caseloads of offenders across CSP 

areas as figures stood at 31 May 2014 (just prior to the introduction of the new 
arrangements and the cessation of Kent Probation).  Figures are only available at CSP 
level and therefore represent combined totals across both Dartford and Gravesham.  

 

 
CSP 

Community 
Order 

Suspended 
Sentence 

Post-
release 
Licence 

Youth 
Rehabilitation 

Order 

Total 

Ashford 87 59 34 3 183 

Canterbury 131 71 58 2 262 

Dartford and 
Gravesham 

 
166 

 
118 

 
100 

 
2 

 
386 

Dover 99 60 48 1 208 

Maidstone 149 68 128 3 348 

Medway 261 184 213 5 663 

Sevenoaks 59 29 27 1 116 

Shepway 93 58 60 4 215 

Swale 179 108 107 5 399 

Thanet 204 118 108 10 440 

Tonbridge and 
Malling 

 
75 

 
50 

 
37 

 
1 

 
163 

Tunbridge Wells 84 42 40 0 166 

NFA 47 21 18 1 87 

Missing/Unknown 184 111 141 6 442 

KCC Districts 1557 913 906 39 3415 

Kent 1818 1097 1119 44 4078 

 
NB. Caseload reflects total Orders/Licences and some offenders will have concurrent 
sentences. ‘NFA/ and Missing/Unknown’ rows cannot be allocated to a CSP and represent 
the following proportions: 10.8% of cases had an incomplete, unrecognised or missing 
postcode; 2.1% of cases were recorded as being NFA. 

 
3.2 The vast majority of the 386 offenders in our area in May 2014 were male (351 offenders or 

90.9%) compared to female (35 offenders or 9.0%) and the consistently most common age 
range (over several years) has been 30-39 years.   

 
3.3 The majority of the total 386 offenders classified themselves as ‘White’ in terms of ethnicity: 

289 or 74.9% whilst 59 offenders or 15.3% described themselves as ‘BME’ (a small number 
either refused to state their ethnicity or ethnicity was not recorded).  This is in proportion 
with and reflects the overall ethnic breakdown of our population. 

 
3.4 The main offending behaviour of the majority of the 386 offenders involved violence (123 

offenders or 31.9%) with the second most common key offence being acquisitive crime (90 
offenders or 23.3%). 

 

Agenda Item 9Page 71



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 38 
 

4. Integrated Offender Management (IOM) 
 
4.1 IOM is a multi-agency process for identifying those offenders who have or are causing harm 

to communities through their criminal and/or anti-social behaviour.  Multi-agency expertise 
and resources are pooled to try to identify ways of reducing re-offending.  Offending 
behaviour of the adult cohort of Gravesham IOM offenders for the period 1 October 2013-
30 September 2014, indicate that a high number did not offend and although some are in 
custody, others have been in the community and are complying with their Orders. All those 
on the adult cohort are male with ages ranging from 19-27 years.  89% of them have an 
employment/training need linked to offending behaviour and Gravesham has the highest 
proportion of those with alcohol linked to their offending behaviour. 

 
4.2 In respect of adult cohort of Dartford IOM offenders, although most have not offended they 

are also in custody.  As with the Gravesham cohort, Dartford’s cohort is also all male.  Over 
three quarters of them have drug dependency linked to their offending behaviour although 
alcohol dependency and needs such as accommodation, education and training are slightly 
lower in this group. 
 

4.3 Offences committed by Adult Cohorts 
 
4.3.1 There were 20 offences committed by 8 individuals in the Dartford cohort in the 12 months 

ending 30 September 2014 – 17 offences fewer or a decrease of 46% compared to the 
previous 12 months.  Most of those committing offences are currently in custody and 
shoplifting was the offence committed with the greatest frequency.  Offences committed by 
the Gravesham cohort fell by 66% in the same time period to 34 crimes – largely secured 
by a fall in both shoplifting and burglary dwelling offences. 

 
5. Deter Young Offenders (DYO) 
 
5.1 Deter Young Offenders (DYO) is a joint process between the Youth Offending Services and 

Kent Police focussed on identifying problematic young offenders under supervision with the 
aim of diverting them away from further criminality.  In Dartford there are 4 DYOs, all male 
and 3 of whom offended in the year ending 30 September 2014.  However, offending has 
reduced significantly from 32 to 14 offences (-56%) compared to the previous year.  The 
key offence committed was shoplifting followed by public order offences. 

 
Dartford DYO 

 

 

Agenda Item 9 Page 72



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 39 
 

5.2 Gravesham has 10 DYOs, 6 of them having committed 26 offences during the 12 months 
ending 30 September 2014 – a slight decrease of 7.1% on the 28 offences committed in the 
previous year.  They predominantly commit offences of violence against the person and 
criminal damage and 8 of them have spent time in custody in the past 2 years ranging from 
1 to 24 months. 

 
Gravesham DYO 

 

 
 

6. Troubled Families Programme (Families First) 
 
6.1 Information has been provided by KCC on progress in the delivery of the Kent Troubled 

Families Programme (known as Families First in Gravesham and Turnaround in Dartford). 
Claims for payment are made based on results (provided here for the October 2014 claims 
submitted) and details of the number of families identified for the Programme refer to the 
position as at November 2014.  Information relating to this Programme is relevant to this 
Assessment because of the areas of focus of interventions and assistance is to have a 
positive impact by reducing offending and anti-social behaviour amongst troubled families. 

 
No. of families identified for the Programme - November 2014 

 
Area November 2014 Target % achieved 

Ashford 211 194 108.8% 

Canterbury 296 286 103.5% 

Dartford 132 95 138.9% 

Dover 262 267 98.1% 

Gravesham 209 180 116.1% 

Maidstone 223 189 118.0% 

Sevenoaks 136 102 133.3% 

Shepway 297 225 132.0% 

Swale 400 369 108.4% 

Thanet 348 364 95.6% 

Ton & Mall 185 175 105.7% 

Tunbridge Wells 118 114 103.5% 

KCC Districts 2,817 2,560 110.0% 

Agenda Item 9Page 73



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 40 
 

6.2 Both Dartford and Gravesham have exceeded their targets in the number of families 
identified for the Programme, with Dartford achieving 138.9% and Gravesham achieving 
116.1% of targets set. 

 
6.3 The Programme has now claimed (under payment by results) for two-thirds of its Kent-wide 

target of 2,560 families.  Claims must evidence improvements in involvement in crime/ASB, 
education outcomes or returns to work that have to be well-evidenced.  Dartford and 
Gravesham have seen the highest proportion of claims - 90 and 150 claims made 
respectively. 

 
District breakdown of Payment by Results Claims – October 2014 

 
6.4 Impact of the Programme on offending behaviour 
 
6.4.1 County-wide data suggests that there has generally been a decrease in the level of 

offending behaviour amongst Troubled Family members.  However, Dartford and 
Gravesham have had a slightly different experience. Gravesham saw one of the largest 
decreases between January-June 2014 and recorded the lowest percentage of 10-17 year 
olds within families committing at least one proven offence.  Dartford recorded a very small 
increase during the same period but the level of offending has remained stable. 

 
Percentage of 10-17 year olds committing at least one proven offence 

 

Area 
Jan-Jun 
2013 

Apr- Sept 
2013 

Jul-Dec 
2013 

Oct 2013-
Mar 2014 

Jan-Jun 
2014 

Ashford 14.2% 12.3% 10.9% 10.6% 6.3% 

Canterbury 7.6% 10.4% 10.9% 10.6% 9.8% 

Dartford 12.5% 12.5% 12.5% 13.2% 13.9% 

Dover 13.7% 16.6% 14.4% 14.4% 9.3% 

Gravesham 10.4% 10.4% 9.2% 8.8% 5.2% 

Maidstone 7.2% 7.2% 8.0% 8.4% 7.2% 

Sevenoaks 9.8% 11.0% 12.9% 11.7% 8.6% 

Shepway 12.1% 12.4% 10.0% 10.7% 7.8% 

Swale 7.3% 8.2% 10.8% 10.8% 6.9% 

Thanet 12.2% 14.4% 14.9% 12.0% 6.4% 

Tonbridge  
and Malling 

 
10.9% 

 
13.7% 

 
16.6% 

 
18.3% 

 
10.9% 

Tunbridge 
Wells 

 
9.6% 

 
14.0% 

 
14.0% 

 
12.1% 

 
8.3% 

KCC 10.5% 11.7% 11.8% 11.5% 7.9% 

67.8%

64.5%

60.9%

43.9%

82.8%

71.8%

78.7%

83.4%

67.3%

95.1%

61.8%

66.0%

77

113

222

162

186

73

149

150

180

90

177

128

0 50 100 150 200 250

Tunbridge Wells

Tonbridge & Malling

Thanet

Swale

Shepway

Sevenoaks

Maidstone

Gravesham

Dover

Dartford

Canterbury

Ashford

Number of families

% of families

Agenda Item 9 Page 74



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 41 
 

6.4.2 The most prevalent offence committed by young people in the Troubled Families cohort 
was violence against the person (25.7%) whilst shoplifting and criminal damage offences 
accounted for 16.8% and 16.0% of the total offences.  The average number of offences 
being committed by each offender also appears to be falling very slightly i.e. not only is the 
number of offenders falling but the rate of offending behaviour is also reducing. 

6.5 Impact of the Programme on Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) 

6.5.1 Levels of ASB amongst families within the Troubled Families cohort also appear to be 
falling.  Dartford has recorded the greatest improvement with the percentage of families 
with at least one member causing ASB falling from 11.2% in December 2013 to 1.6% in 
June 2014.  Gravesham has also seen an improvement from 8.5% to 5.5% at the same 
periods. 

Area 
Snapshot 
Dec 2013 

Snapshot 
Mar 2014 

Snapshot 
Jun 2014 

Ashford 21.8% 21.2% 13.0% 

Canterbury 10.3% 9.5% 8.8% 

Dartford 11.2% 4.0% 1.6% 

Dover 9.4% 11.4% 7.1% 

Gravesham 8.5% 6.0% 5.5% 

Maidstone 16.3% 11.6% 14.2% 

Sevenoaks 34.2% 33.3% 33.3% 

Shepway 12.9% 4.3% 11.4% 

Swale 12.3% 14.2% 3.3% 

Thanet 6.4% 8.2% 3.6% 

Tonbridge and Malling 9.4% 7.6% 7.1% 

Tunbridge Wells 17.0% 11.1% 8.9% 

KCC Districts 12.6% 11.1% 8.6% 

 

6.6 Domestic Abuse and Troubled Families 

6.6.1 In April-June 2014, the percentage of families on the Programme in Dartford in which at 
least one member reported at least one incident of domestic abuse to Kent Police was 
13.8% and in Gravesham, the percentage was 8.5%.  These figures compare to an average 
Kent District percentage of 7.7%. 

Percentage of families – at least one member reporting at least one incident of 
domestic abuse to Kent Police 

Area Apr-Jun 
2013 

Jul-Sept 
2013 

Oct-Dec 
2014 

Jan-Mar 
2014 

Apr-Jun 
2014 

Dartford 5.6% 8.0% 5.6% 4.8% 13.8% 

Gravesham 4.5% 7.0% 3.0% 4.5% 8.5% 

KCC 4.8% 5.8% 5.1% 4.5% 7.7% 

 

6.6.2 It is important to note that the above figures concern reports to Police and that as such, it is 
well-recognised that figures will represent considerable under-reporting.  A sample 
previously provided by KCA to the Troubled Families Programme suggested that 
approximately 41% of the families working with Family Intervention Practitioners (FIP 
Workers) were likely to have domestic abuse issues. 

6.7 Substance misuse and Troubled Families 

6.7.1 Information supplied by Kent Drug and Alcohol Action Team (KDAAT), although not 
provided at District level, indicates that 1.7% of Troubled Families have had at least one 
member referred to KDAAT or in substance misuse treatment programmes.  The Troubled 
Families Programme predicts an increase in this figure as data from the most complex 
families being supported suggest that 38% of families have at least one adult and 43% 
have at least one child with substance misuse issues. 

Agenda Item 9Page 75



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 42 
 

Review of key activities – reducing re-offending 
 

Key work carried out by Dartford and Gravesham CSUs and the CSP to address reducing 
re-offending in 2014 

• Joint Dartford and Gravesham Reducing Re-offending Sub-Group fully established and 
operational, led by KSS CRC and focusing on accommodation and education, 
employment and training issues affecting ex-offenders; 

• Promoted Probation’s Mentoring Scheme, with some local Council Members having 
undergone training; 

• Provided financial support (Gravesham CSU) to the No Walls Gardens Project based in 
Northfleet which is now established as a Community Interest Community, assisting ex-
offenders and people who have been long-term unemployed in acquiring new skills and 
work experience to help them into jobs; 

• Established close working relationship with training providers (e.g. Bluewater Learning 
Shop and employment services including DWP and Jobcentre Plus) to extend assistance 
given to those about to be released in identifying learning, training and employment 
opportunities; 

• Improved information sharing between partner agencies through the IOM process in order 
that potential issues that could affect an individual about to be released can be identified 
early on e.g. whether there is likely to be difficulty in securing accommodation or training/ 
employment is available; 

• Through the Reducing Re-offending Sub-Group, practical information e.g. regarding 
services available locally (including information regarding food banks) has been shared in 
order that those working directly with ex-offenders can communicate the information to 
them; 

• Delivered programmes of work with Community Payback, often supported by volunteers 
from the local community and different partner agencies;   

• Developed and introduced an Identification Documents Scheme whereby those about to 
be released without formal documents e.g. birth certificates, passports, could have these 
replaced as lack of them could often create barriers to securing accommodation and/or 
employment. 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 9 Page 76



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 43 
 

Road Safety 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 Road Safety has been treated as a strategic priority at both a County level and by our local 

CSP for several years with a particular emphasis on raising awareness amongst young 
people and adults as pedestrians and drivers.  Whilst not necessarily involving criminal 
behaviour or ASB, issues relating to road safety can impact on individuals’ personal safety 
and these can often be effectively addressed through partnership preventative and 
educational work. 

 
1.2 Dartford and Gravesham have the smallest land area of Kent Districts but the number of 

people per km2 is high and throughout our Boroughs there are major trunk roads e.g. M25, 
A282, A2 and M2 that facilitate traffic throughout the County.  Planned large-scale 
regeneration and development projects, if fully delivered, and predicted high population 
growth (Dartford), will continue to see the number of road users in our area increase. 

 
2. Road Traffic Collisions (RTCs) – All Casualties 
 
2.1 Casualties resulting from road traffic collisions (RTCs) increased by an average of 9.0% 

across Kent in the 12 months ending 30 June 2014 compared to the previous 12 months. 
Only one District (Dover) recorded a decrease.  Dartford saw a higher percentage increase 
than Gravesham but also recorded a considerably higher number of casualties (the highest 
in the County following Maidstone).  However, the road networks in and around Dartford 
mean that the Borough’s environmental/geographical characteristics make it more likely to 
experience RTCs than many other parts of the County.   

 
2.2 There were 642 RTCs recorded in Dartford in the year ending 30 June 2014 compared to 

558 RTCs the previous year – an increase of 15.0%.  Gravesham recorded 369 RTCs in 
the same period – 4.2% higher than the previous year when 354 RTCs were recorded.  
Dartford’s figure is quite a lot higher than the District average of 515 RTCs whilst 
Gravesham’s is amongst the lowest in the County.  

 
Road Traffic Collisions – All Casualties 

 
Area 

Jul 2011- 
Jun 2012 

Jul 2012- 
Jun 2013 

Jul 2013- 
Jun 2014 

 
% +/- 

Ashford 488 524 535 2.1% 

Canterbury 477 518 526 1.5% 

Dartford 550 558 642 15.0% 

Dover 351 395 391 -1.0% 

Gravesham 369 354 369 4.2% 

Maidstone 622 672 693 3.1% 

Sevenoaks 556 546 553 1.3% 

Shepway 376 350 352 0.6% 

Swale 487 447 615 37.6% 

Thanet 464 432 529 22.4% 

Tonbridge and Malling 498 463 510 10.1% 

Tunbridge Wells 383 409 465 13.7% 

Kent Districts 5621 5668 6180 9.0% 

 
2.3 Whilst seemingly obvious, it is important to still note that adverse and severe weather 

conditions will clearly have an impact on the risks of collisions on the roads e.g. particularly 
harsh winters, flooding, snow and ice have all been experienced in the County in the past 
couple of years and these may have contributed to increases in accidents. 

 

Agenda Item 9Page 77



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 44 
 

3. Road Traffic Collision (RTC) Casualties – Under 16 years old 
 
3.1 In the year ending 30 June 2014, the number of RTC casualties in Dartford and Gravesham 

that involved children under 16 years of age was slightly higher than the County’s District 
average with 49 such RTCs having been recorded in Dartford and 51 in Gravesham 
compared to the District average of 46 RTCs.  Numbers are quite small and therefore, to 
speak in terms of percentage increases and decreases would be unhelpful.  However, there 
were 9 more RTCs involving casualties under 16 in Dartford compared to the previous 12 
months (from 40 to 49) and 13 more such RTCs in Gravesham (from 38 to 51). 

 
4. Road Traffic Collisions (RTCs) with ‘Killed and Seriously Injured’ (KSI) Casualties 
 
4.1 RTCs with Killed or Seriously Injured casualties (KSIs) increased in the vast majority of 

Districts in the 12 months ending 30 June 2014 compared to the previous 12 months.  The 
exceptions were Dartford and Tonbridge and Malling.  Dartford actually recorded a 
decrease from 43 to 38 RTCs KSI casualties. Gravesham saw an increase in such 
incidents but numbers are generally much smaller: from 17 to 27 RTCs with KSI casualties. 

 
Road Traffic Collisions with KSI Casualties 

 
 
Area 

Jul 2011- 
Jun 2012 

Jul 2012- 
Jun 2013 

Jul 2013- 
Jun 2014 

Ashford 47 72 78 

Canterbury 56 51 72 

Dartford 34 43 38 

Dover 28 38 46 

Gravesham 16 17 27 

Maidstone 58 54 76 

Sevenoaks 75 50 69 

Shepway 31 39 47 

Swale 48 38 61 

Thanet 43 35 51 

Tonbridge and Malling 40 45 44 

Tunbridge Wells 41 46 58 

KCC Districts 517 528 667 

 
4.2 RTCs involving KSI casualties that are under 16 years of age are quite small and in both 

Dartford and Gravesham the number of such incidents is very close to the District average. 
 

Road Traffic Collisions – KSI Casualties aged under 16 
 
 
Area 

Jul 2011- 
Jun 2012 

Jul 2012- 
Jun 2013 

Jul 2013- 
Jun 2014 

Ashford 4 5 9 

Canterbury 2 2 5 

Dartford 3 4 5 

Dover 3 2 1 

Gravesham 3 1 4 

Maidstone 5 3 2 

Sevenoaks 4 0 5 

Shepway 4 4 1 

Swale 4 7 6 

Thanet 5 7 6 

Tonbridge and Malling 2 4 4 

Tunbridge Wells 3 5 5 

KCC Districts 42 44 53 

 
 

Agenda Item 9 Page 78



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 45 
 

Review of key activities – road safety 
 

Key work carried out by Dartford and Gravesham CSUs and the CSP to address road 
safety issues in 2014 

• Joint work with KCC Highways Educational Team in running a football-themed 
promotional campaign against drink-driving in the run up to the World Cup including 
advice and information provided to pubs and visits by local Licensing Teams; 

• Promotion of Community Speedwatch in both Boroughs with the schemes now operating 
very well following successful recruitment of further volunteers; risk assessments for sites 
nominated by scheme members have been completed and Speedwatch equipment 
updated; 

• KCC Wardens, Parking Services and KCC Road Safety Team have continued to deliver 
work in and around schools to improve safety particularly at school dropping off and 
picking up times; 

• Support provided to Safety In Action Week for 10-11 year olds from local schools that 
includes a number of stalls/events to promote road safety for young pedestrians and 
cyclists; 

• Awareness-raising campaigns in the Christmas and New Year period regarding driving 
whilst under the influence of alcohol and/or other substances and encouraging people to 
use taxis to get home safely; 

• Working closely with KCC Highways, Kent Police and local landowners to counter risks 
posed to both pedestrians and drivers by horses loose on the highway (Denton, 
Gravesend and Stone, Dartford); 

• ‘Licence to Kill’ event run in both Boroughs in conjunction with KCC for young 
drivers/potential drivers and their passengers; 

• Joint work (KCC Wardens and Gravesham CSU) with local primary school children to 
create street signs warning against speeding that have been produced and installed in key 
locations as part of the My Place Matters project.  

  

Agenda Item 9Page 79



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 46 
 

 

Counter Terrorism and Extremism 
 
1. National Policy – PREVENT 
 
1.1 For several years work at a local level has concentrated on delivery of the Government’s 

Prevent Strategy.  Prevent is a key part of CONTEST, the Government’s counter-terrorism 
strategy that aims to respond to the ideological challenge of terrorism and those who 
promote it, prevent people from being drawn into terrorism and work with sectors and 
institutions where there are risks of radicalisation. 

 
1.2 The CONTEST strategy is based around four key areas of work;  

• Pursue: the investigation and disruption of terrorist attacks; 

• Prevent: work to stop people becoming terrorists or supporting terrorism and extremism; 
(this is the key strand for local authorities) 

• Protect: improving our protective security to stop a terrorist attack; and 

• Prepare: working to minimise the impact of an attack and to recover from it as quickly as 
possible. 

 
1.3 Work includes disrupting extremist speakers, removing material online and intervening to 

stop people being radicalised.   
 
2. Channel – a Partnership Approach to Protecting Vulnerable People 

 
2.1 Channel is a national multi-agency approach to provide support to individuals who are at 

risk of being drawn into terrorist-related activity or who are in danger of being radicalised.  
Channel forms part of the wider Prevent Strategy but seeks particularly to: 

 

• Safeguard individuals who might be vulnerable to being radicalised so that they are 
not at risk of being drawn into terrorist-related activity; 

• Ensure that individuals and communities have the ability to resist all forms of 
terrorism and violent extremism activity likely to lead to terrorism. 

 
2.2 The Channel process identifies those most at risk of radicalisation and refers them via the 

Police or Local Authority for assessment by a multi-agency panel.  Panels will consider how 
best to safeguard them and support their vulnerability through a support package tailored to 
individual needs.  Partnership involvement ensures that those at risk have access to a wide 
range of support ranging from mainstream services, such as health and education, through 
to specialist mentoring or faith guidance and wider diversionary activities. 

 
3. Counter Terrorism and Security Bill 
 
3.1 The UK national terrorist threat level is ‘severe’.  The Counter-Terrorism and Security Bill 

currently being taken through Parliament has been brought forward to respond to the 
increased threat.  This new legislation will sit alongside existing powers already used to 
combat terrorist threats.   

 
3.2 The new legislation is highlighted within this Assessment as aspects of the Bill concern the 

role that Local Authorities and other statutory agencies will be expected to play in reducing 
the risks of terrorism and particularly of the potential radicalisation of vulnerable people.  
The Prevent programme relies on the cooperation of many organisations to be effective –
many of the organisations that will have a role are already actively engaged in CSPs.   

 

Agenda Item 9 Page 80



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 47 
 

3.3 However, Prevent activity relies on the cooperation of many organisations and agencies to 
be effective and currently, such activity is not consistent across the country.  In legislating, 
the Government’s intention is to make delivery of such activity a requirement.  Partners will 
need, as a minimum, to ensure that they understand the local threat and come to a 
judgement as to whether activities currently underway are sufficient to meet it.  Making 
Channel activity a legislative requirement is intended to enshrine good practice and ensure 
consistency in the delivery of activity. 

 
3.4 Prevent and Channel 
 
3.4.1 The relevant provisions of the Bill are contained in Part 5 Chapters 1 and 2.  s.21 places a 

general duty on specified authorities which includes ‘a county council or district council in 
England’ (as listed in Schedule 3) ‘in the exercise of its functions, to have due regard to the 
need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism’.  As well as applying to Local 
Authorities, the duty will apply to the police, prisons, providers of probation services, 
schools, colleges and universities.  In two-tier areas such as Kent, Government have 
advised that County and District Councils will need to agree proportionate arrangements for 
sharing the assessment of risk and for agreeing local Prevent action plans. 

 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 81



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 48 
 

Ranking Information 
 

Perception of community concern 
Has the theme been raised by any community groups within the CSP area or generated a high 
level of contact between members of the public and statutory partner services?  Are there any 
indicators to suggest that this is an issue about which the public are concerned e.g. through 
contact with CSUs, referrals by MPs, local Councillors? 
 
5 = A serious concern/problem 
3 = Medium impact 
4 = Low impact 
0 = No impact/No evidence/data to enable scoring 
 
Volume 
Are there still large numbers involved or for e.g. does the theme account for a large proportion of 
total recorded crime? 
 
5 = High volume 
3 = Medium volume 
1 = Low volume 
0 = No evidence/data to enable scoring 
 
Level of harm 
To what degree does the theme impact on the community/individuals (both physically and/or 
economically)? 
 
5 = High impact 
3 = Medium impact 
1 = Low impact 
0 = No impact/no evidence/data to enable scoring 
 
Suggested trend – are figures higher/lower than anticipated/compared to the previous year 
 
5 = Considerably higher than anticipated/compared to the previous year 
3 = Slightly higher than anticipated/compared to the previous year 
1 = Lower than anticipated/compared to the previous year 
0 = Much lower than anticipated/no evidence to enable scoring 
 
Performance compared to other Districts/County/MSG 
Comparisons are drawn with the MSG in the first instance and with District County level data 
where this is not possible 
 
5 = Poor performance against others 
3 = Similar performance to others 
1 = Good performance against others 
0 = Best performance against others 
 
Partnership contribution 
Can partners from different agencies work together to assist with preventing or reducing the 
numbers involved in the theme?  If yes, then a higher score should be allocated. 
 
5 = Partnership working can greatly improve performance 
3 = Partnership working can improve performance 
1 = Partnership working will have limited impact 
0 = Partnership working will have no impact/no evidence 
 

Agenda Item 9 Page 82



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 49 
 

Theme Ranking Process – Violent crime and domestic abuse 

Factor Dartford Gravesham 

Perception of community concern  5 5 

Level of Harm/Impact on Community (Physical/Economic)  3 3 

Volume  5 5 

Suggested trend 5 5 

Performance compared to other Districts/County/MSG  4 4 

Partnership contribution (can partnership working add value)  5 5 

Total  27 27 

 
Theme Ranking Process - Burglary and BOTD 

Factor Dartford Gravesham 

Perception of community concern  5 5 

Level of Harm/Impact on Community (Physical/Economic)  2 2 

Volume  1 1 

Suggested trend 1 1 

Performance compared to other Districts/County/MSG  3 3 

Partnership contribution (can partnership working add value)  2 2 

Total  14 14 

 
Theme Ranking Process – Theft and handling offences 

Factor Dartford Gravesham 

Perception of community concern  2 2 

Level of Harm/Impact on Community (Physical/Economic)  4 4 

Volume  5 5 

Suggested trend 3 3 

Performance compared to other Districts/County/MSG  5 5 

Partnership contribution (can partnership working add value)  3 3 

Total  22 22 

 
Theme Ranking Process – Vehicle crime 

Factor Dartford Gravesham 

Perception of community concern  2 1 

Level of Harm/Impact on Community (Physical/Economic)  2 2 

Volume  1 1 

Suggested trend 1 1 

Performance compared to other Districts/County/MSG  4 4 

Partnership contribution (can partnership working add value)  1 1 

Total  11 10 

 
Theme Ranking Process – Criminal damage 

Factor Dartford Gravesham 

Perception of community concern  4 4 

Level of Harm/Impact on Community (Physical/Economic)  5 5 

Volume  5 5 

Suggested trend 4 3 

Performance compared to other Districts/County/MSG  5 5 

Partnership contribution (can partnership working add value)  4 4 

Total  27 26 

 

Agenda Item 9Page 83



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 50 
 

Theme Ranking Process – Anti-social behaviour 

Factor Dartford Gravesham 

Perception of community concern  5 5 

Level of Harm/Impact on Community (Physical/Economic)  5 5 

Volume  5 5 

Suggested trend 3 1 

Performance compared to other Districts/County/MSG  3 5 

Partnership contribution (can partnership working add value)  5 5 

Total  26 26 

 
Theme Ranking Process – Substance misuse 

Factor Dartford Gravesham 

Perception of community concern  5 5 

Level of Harm/Impact on Community (Physical/Economic)  5 5 

Volume  1 1 

Suggested trend 2 2 

Performance compared to other Districts/County/MSG  2 2 

Partnership contribution (can partnership working add value)  5 5 

Total  20 20 

 
Theme Ranking Process – Road safety 

Factor Dartford Gravesham 

Perception of community concern  4 4 

Level of Harm/Impact on Community (Physical/Economic)  3 3 

Volume  5 2 

Suggested trend 4 2 

Performance compared to other Districts/County/MSG  4 2 

Partnership contribution (can partnership working add value)  4 4 

Total  24 17 

 
Reducing Re-offending  
 
Information available makes it difficult to apply the theme ranking process to this area or to 
effectively score against the criteria e.g. level of harm is hard to assess without firm evidence.  
However, it is acknowledged that a very small number of offenders may be responsible for a very 
disproportionate number of criminal offences and incidents of ASB.  Reducing re-offending is also 
a cross-cutting theme, equally important in addressing any of the themes that have been identified 
above as key priorities.  The Reducing Re-offending Sub-Group of our CSP is also a relatively 
newly established group and good progress has been made in building the networks for joint 
working between service providers to begin addressing those factors that contribute to offending 
behaviour.  To cease to treat this theme as a priority at this point would be premature. 
 

 

Agenda Item 9 Page 84



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 51 
 

Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety  
Partnership – Contacts 
 
Dartford Borough Council  
Community Safety Unit 

Gravesham Borough Council 
Community Safety Unit 

Civic Centre 
Home Gardens 
Dartford 
Kent DA1 1DR 
 
Tel. 01322 343000 
www.safedartford.gov.uk 
 

1st Floor, Civic Centre 
Windmill Street 
Gravesend 
Kent DA12 1AU 
 
Tel. 01474 337328/7000 
www.gravesham.gov.uk 
 

 
Kent Police 

Kent County Council 
Community Safety Unit 

Thames Way 
Northfleet 
Gravesend 
Kent DA11 8BD 
 
Tel. 01474 369055 
www.kent.police.uk 
 

1st Floor, Invicta House 
Maidstone 
Kent ME14 1XX 
 
Tel. 08458 247247 
www.kent.gov.uk 
 

 
Kent Fire and Rescue Service 

Kent, Surrey and Sussex Community 
Rehabilitation Company 

The Godlands 
Straw Mill Hill 
Maidstone 
Kent ME15 6XB 
 
Tel. 01622 692121 
www.kent.fire-uk.org 
 

Joynes House 
New Road 
Gravesend 
Kent DA11 0AT 
 
Tel. 03000 473000 
www.ksscrc.org.uk 
 

Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

 
Kent Police and Crime Commissioner 

2nd Floor, Civic Centre 
Windmill Street 
Gravesend 
Kent DA12 1AU 
 
Tel. 03000 424903 
www.dartfordgraveshamswanleyccg.nhs.uk 
 

Office of the Kent PCC 
Kent Police Headquarters 
Sutton Road 
Maidstone 
Kent ME15 9BZ 
 
Tel. 0622 677055 
www.kent-pcc.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 85



Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2014 

Page | 52 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
December 2014 

 

Agenda Item 9 Page 86



 

 

 
CRIME and DISORDER (Overview & Scrutiny) COMMITTEE 
  

ROLLING WORK PROGRAMME 2014-15 and BEYOND 
 
 
Detail: 
 
On a discretionary basis and with the prior agreement of the 
Community Safety Partnership (CSP) as appropriate, to continue 
to review the contributions made by the partner agencies to the 
aims of the CSP. 
 
Plus: 

• To note the Minutes of the Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel 
(PCP) and receive updates as appropriate from Dartford’s 
representative on the Panel; 

 

• Draw-Downs on an ad-hoc basis [t.b.a. within deadlines]; 
 

On a statutory basis to; 
 

• Consider the CSP’s annual Strategic Assessment (SA) document; 

• Consider the CSP’s intermediary Performance Report document; 

• Consider the CSP’s annual Community Safety Plan. 
 

The Work Programme, as set out in the Work Plan [as updated] is subject to 
review at each meeting of the Committee. Discretionary items may be 
rescheduled and/or new items added, in accordance with the Committee’s 
wishes and the guidance of the Strategic Director (External Services).  
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10Page 87



 

 

 

Work Plan 2014-15 and 2014-16 
 
 
 

Meeting Work Plan Items  

 
Winter 
2015 
(Feb.) 

 
Strategic 
Assessment 
2014 

 
Kent Police and 
Crime Panel (PCP) 
Update  

 
 

 

 
Summer 
2015 
(July) 

 
Community 
Safety and 
Action Plan 2015 

 
Kent Police and 
Crime Panel (PCP) 
Update 

 
Performance 
Report  
 
 

 
Review of new 
ASB legislation 
[effective October 
2014] 

 
Winter 
2016 
(Feb.) 

 
Strategic 
Assessment 
2015 

 
Kent Police and 
Crime Panel (PCP) 
Update 

  

 
Summer 
2016 
(July) 

 
Community 
Safety and 
Action Plan 2016 

 
Kent Police and 
Crime Panel (PCP) 
Update 

 
Performance 
Report 

 

     

 
 
Member Services        January 2015 

 

Agenda Item 10 Page 88


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 July 2014
	6 Regulation 9 Notice
	8 Kent Police and Crime Panel (PCP) Update
	Item 8.Printed minutes 09th-Sep-2014 14.00 Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel

	9 CSP Strategic Assessment 2014
	Item9.FINAL.amd.D&G CSP Strategic Assessment 2014

	10 Work Plan Update

